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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE JAN 2 8 2026

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

Lori A. Weaver 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
Commissioner 603-271-9544 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9544

Fax; 603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhh$.nh.eov
Katja S. Fox
Director

December 31,2025

Her Excellency. Governor Kelly A. Ayotte
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New/ Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with Community Action
Partnership of Strafford County (VC#177200), Dover, NH to add funding and modify scope for the
continued provision of Continuum of Care housing services, by increasing the price limitation by
$1,385,645 from $3,093,201 to $4,478,846 with no change to the contract completion date of
November 30, 2027, effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 14, 2023, item
#41B, and amended on June 26, 2024, item #54.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2026 and 2027, and
are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2028, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request Is to add funding and modify scope for the continued provision of Continuum
of Care housing services as further described below. This request is Sole Source because MOP
150 requires all amendments to agreements originally approved as sole source to be identified
as sole source. Federal regulations require all procurement efforts for these services to be
directed by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) through an annual
Continuum of Care competitive application process. The Department must contract with the
vendor selected as a result of this HUD process.

The purpose of this request is to add funding as awarded by HUD to support the
Contractor's continued delivery of five (5) Continuum of Care housing projects. The additional
funding is the result of the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2024, which authorizes HUD to make
reasonable cost of living adjustments to renewal amounts to help afford increasing costs of
operations due to inflation. This amendment is also to make minor scope modifications to reflect
updated HUD language and to add required contract terms Included In all Continuum of Care
projects. Additionally, this amendment is to consolidate scopes of work, including Rapid Re-
Houslng, Rapid Re-Housing Domestic Violence and Coordinated Entry projects, from two (2)
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Continuum of Care contracts, including one (1) that expired on Novennt>er 1, 2025 and one (1)
that will be terminated upon approval of this request.

Approximately 36 households and 60 individuals will be served, at any given time annually,
through the Permanent Housing projects, and a range of 100 to 500 Individuals will be served
through the Coordinated Entry projects through November 30. 2027.

The Contractor will continue to provide a housing services continuum of care project that
Includes the following projects:

o Permanent Supportive Housing (PSH) services that deliver long-term rental and
leasing assistance, combined with supportive services, for participants with a disability
as defined by HtJD.

o Coordinated Entry (CE) services that ensure the Implementation, and dally operation,
of a structured system, In accordance with CoC Program rules, for admitting,
prioritizing, and assessing the housing, supportive services and case management
needs of project participants.

o Coordinated Entry Domestic Violence (CE DV) services for participants fleeing, or
attempting to flee, domestic violence while experiencing homelessness, or while at
Imminent risk of homelessness.

o Rapid Re-Housing (RRH) services that deliver rental assistance, supportive services
and collaborative case management to indivlduais, youth, and families who are
experiencing homelessness.

o Rapid Re-HousIng Domestic Violence (RRH DV) services that deiiver rentai
assistance to individuals, youth and families who are experiencing homelessness.
Participants must be fleeing, or attempting to flee, domestic violence while
experiencing homelessness, or while at imminent risk of homelessness.

The Contractor maximizes each participant's ability to iive more independentiy by
providing connections to community and mainstream services.

The Department will continue to monitor services by reviewing annual reports provided by
the Contractor and conducting annual reviews related to compliance with administrative rules and
contractual agreements.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the Contractor wlii not receive
additional funding, as awarded by HUD, to support cost of living adjustments, and the contract
scope will not reflect current HUD language nor current contract terms which may result in fewer
permanent housing options and supportive services available, leaving vulnerable Individuals and
families experiencing homelessness In unsafe situations without needed support. Additionally, the
Department will be out of compliance with federal regulations, which couid result in a loss of
federal funding for these and other types of permanent housing and supportive service programs.

The Department has determined that the Contractor Is In good standing with the Secretary
of State's Office, has secured the required levels of insurance, and has provided evidence of
authority to execute and be bound by the contract. The Contractor is a non-profit organization,
and the Department has also confirmed the Contractor Is registered and in good standing with
the Department of Justice's Charitabie Division.
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Area served: Statewide.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #14,267, FAINs
NH0053L1T002414, NH0096L1T002409. NH0121D1T002405, NH0124L1T002405,
NH0164L1T002300, NH0164L1T002401. NH0135D1T002302, and NH0135D1T002403

Respectfully ̂ bmitted,

Lori A. Weaver

Commissioner
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The Department of Health and Human Services'Mission is to Join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

05-95-42-423010-79270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS &

HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER PROGRAM

100% Federal Funds

GAPSC

NH0053

Vendor#177200

100% FF

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2024 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD S78.387 $0 $78,387
2025 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 42307050 $126,480 $0 $126,480

Sub Total $204,867 $0 $204,867

NH0096 100% FF

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2024 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $38,524 $0 $38,524
2025 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 42307050 $38,524 $0 $38,524

Sub Total $77,048 $0 $77,048

NH0121 100% FF

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2024 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $139,960 $0 $139,960
2025 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 42307050 $239,930 $0 $239,930

Sub Total $379,890 $0 $379,890

NH0124 100% FF

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2024 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $154,579 $0 $154,579
2025 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 42307050 $248,680 $0 $248,680

Sub Total $403,259 $0 $403,259

NH0164 100% FF

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2025 074-500589 Contracts for Prop Svcs 42307050 $397,132 $0 $397,132
Sub Total $397,132 $0 $397,132

I  Subtotal 79271 $1,462,1961 ' $01 $1,462,1961

05-95-92-921510-31700000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV;

HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER PROGRAM
100% Federal Funds

NH0053 100% FF

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2026 072-509073 Grants Federal 92157050 $126,480 $16,452 $142,932
2027 072-509073 Grants Federal 92157050 $126,480 $8,226 $134,706

2028 072-509073 Grants Federal 92157050 $42,160 $0 $42,160
Sub Total $295,120 $24,678 $319,798

NH0096 100% FF Reassigned from SNHS (CAPHR)
State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2026 072-509073 Grants Federal 92157058 $38,524 $116,811 $155,335
2027 072-509073 Grants Federal 92157058 $38,524 $120,740 $159,264
2028 072-509073 Grants Federal 92157058 $0 $0 $0

Sub Total $77,048 $237,551 $314,599

Governor and Council Letter Attachment

Financial Detail

Page 1 of 2



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

NH0121 100% FF

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2026 072-509073 Grants Federal 92157058 $239,930 $7,997 $247,927

2027 072-509073 Grants Federal 92157058 $239,930 $5,713 $245,643

2028 072-509073 Grants Federal 92157058 $99,970 $0 $99,970

Sub Total $579,830 $13,710 $593,540

NH0124 100% FF

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2026 072-509073 Grants Federal 92157050 $237,472 $16,018 $253,490

2027 072-509073 Grants Federal 92157050 $231,868 $43,750 $275,618

2028 072-509073 Grants Federal 92157050 $77,289 $0 $77,289

Sub Total $546,629 $59,768 $606,397

NH0164 100% FF

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2026 072-509073 Grants Federal 92157050 $132,378 $342,800 $475,178

2027 072-509073 Grants Federal 92157050 $0 $246,378 $246,378

Sub Total $132,378 $589,178 $721,556

NH0135 100% FF Reassigned from Brigid

State Fiscai

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2026 072-509073 Grants Federal 92157050 $0 $202,767 $202,767

2027 072-509073 Grants Federal 92157050 $0 $196,529 $196,529

2028 072-509073 Grants Federal 92157050 $0 $61,464 $61,464

Sub Total $0 $460,760 $460,760

1  Subtotal 31701 $1,631,0051 $1,385,6451 $3,016,6501

1  Overall Total 1 $3,093,201 $1,385,6451 $4,478,8461

Governor and Council Letter Attachment

Financial Detail

Page 2 of 2
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Continuum of Care CAPSC contract is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Community Action
Partnership of Strafford County ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 14, 2023 (Item #41B), as amended on June 26, 2024 (Item #54), the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8., Price Limitation, to read:

$4,478,846

2. Modify Exhibit A - Revisions to Standard Provisions, by adding Subsection 1.4., to read:

1.4 Paragraph 6, Compliance by Contractor with Laws and Regulations/Equal Employment
Opportunity, Subparagraph 6.1., is amended as follows:

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable statutes, laws, regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor, including, but not
limited to, RSA 151:21 Patients' Bill of Rights, civil rights and equal employment
opportunity laws, and the Governor's order on Respect and Civility in the Workplace,
Executive Order 2020-01. In addition, if this Agreement is funded in any part by monies
of the United States, the Contractor shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules,
regulations and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the State or
the United States issue to implement these regulations. The Contractor shall also comply
with all applicable intellectual property laws.

3. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit B - Amendment #2,
Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

4. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms; Section 1.1., to read:

1.1. 100% Federal funds. Title XIV Housing Programs under the Homeless Emergency
Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing Act (HEARTH Act), Subtitle A-Housing
Assistance (Public Law 102-550), by the US Dept of Housing and Urban Development,
Continuum of Care Program, Assistance Listing # 14.267, as awarded on:

1.1.1. March 28, 2023, FAINs NH0053L1T002212, NH0096L1T002207,
NH0121DT002203, and NH0124L1T002203

1.1.2. August 13, 2024, FAINs NH0121D1T002304, and NH0124L1T002304

1.1.3. September 25, 2024, FAINs NH0053L1T002313, and NH0096L1T002308

1.1.4. September 26, 2024, FAINs NH0164L1T002300, and NH0135D1T002302

1.1.5. May 27, 2025, FAINs NH0096L1T002409, and NH0135D1T002403

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials

SS-2024-DBH-05-CONTI-01-A02 Page 1 of 4 pate 1^5/2026
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1.1.6. May 30, 2025, FAINs NH0053L1T002414, and NH0121D1T002405

1.1.7. June 17, 2025, FAINs NH0124L1T002405, and NH0164L1T002401

5. Modify Exhibit C-9, Budget Sheet - Amendment #1, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-9,
Budget Sheet-Amendment#2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

6. Modify Exhibit C-10, Budget Sheet - Amendment #1, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-
10, Budget Sheet - Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

7. Modify Exhibit C-11, Budget Sheet - Amendment #1, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-
11, Budget Sheet-Amendment#2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

8. Modify Exhibit C-12, Budget Sheet - Amendment #1, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-
12, Budget Sheet-Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

9. Modify Exhibit 0-14, Budget Sheet - Amendment #1, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-
14, Budget Sheet-Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

10. Modify Exhibit C-17, Budget Sheet - Amendment #1, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-
17, Budget Sheet-Amendment#2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein

11. Add Exhibits C-18 through C-21, Budget Sheets - Amendment #2 , which are attached hereto and
incorporated by reference herein.

Community Action Partnership of Stratford County A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials.

38-202-
v7.12.23
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date v/ritten below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

1/6/2026

Date

— DocuSlgned by;

ICiZj* f
-ED9DC6B04C63442...

Name:

Title: Director

1/5/2026

Date

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County

—DocuSigned by:

>  86ie6ADCCB0646E...

Name: Betsey Andrews Parker

Title:

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County A-S-1.3

SS-2024-DBH-05-CONTI-01-A02 Page 3 of 4
V. 7.12.23
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

-Doc^lgned by:

1/7/2026

y'—— DocuSlgned by:

748734844941460...-748734844941460...

Date Name: KoDyn uuanno

Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Community Action Partnership of Stratford County A-S-1.3

SS-2024-DBH-05-CONTI-01-A02 Page 4 of 4
V. 7.12.23
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care CAPSC

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #2

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. Continuum of Care

1.1.1. Permanent Supportive Housing (PSH^ (Effective November 1. 2023^

1.1.1.1. The Contractor must provide PSH, which is long-term assistance
for participants with a disability as defined by The U.S. Department
of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). The Contractor must
provide assistance to program participants until the participant(s)
chooses to exit the project or is terminated from the project as
determined by HUD regulations, 24 CFR 578.

1.1.1.2. The Contractor must provide a Permanent Supportive Housing
program (herein CAPSC PSH), in this agreement, that is targeted
to serve eight (8) individuals including adults, youth, and/or
families, utilizing six (6) housing units.

1.1.1.3. The Contractor must provide tenant based rental assistance that is
permitted for greater than 24 months, does not have a designated
end date, and must be administered in accordance with the policies
and procedures established by the Continuum, as set forth in 24
CFR 578.7(a)(9). Tenant based rental assistance is rental
assistance in which program participants choose housing of an
appropriate size in which to reside.

1.1.1.4. The Contractor must provide supportive services designed to meet
the needs of the program participants.

1.1.1.5. The Contractor must ensure that program participants are not
required to participate in supportive services as a condition of their
housing.

1.1.1.6. The Contractor must ensure PSH projects provide supportive
services for participants that will ensure successful retention in or
help in obtaining permanent housing, including all supportive
services, regardless of funding.

1.1.1.7. The Contractor must assign a case manager to each participant
upon program entry.

1.1.1.8. The Contractor must develop a housing stability plan with program
participants that outlines the steps to be taken, including but not
limited to:

1.1.1.8.1. Increasing both earned and non-earned income;

1.1.1.8.2. Ensuring that program participants receive individual
assistance in obtaining the benefits of mainstream

v..SS-2024-DBH-05-CONTI-01-A02 B-2.0 Contractor Initials

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County Page 1 of 22 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care CAPSC

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #2

health, social, and employment programs for which
they are eligible to apply and that meet their needs;
and

1.1.1.8.3. Maintaining permanent housing or facilitating exits to
positive permanent housing destinations.

1.1.1.9. The Contractor must conduct an annual assessment of service

needs of the program participants and adjust the services
accordingly.

1.1.2. Rapid Re-Housing (RRH) (Effective December 1. 20231

1.1.2.1. The Contractor must provide a Rapid Re-Housing (RRH) program,
in this Agreement, that is targeted to serve nine (9) households
comprised of 18 individuals, at any given time annually, who are
experiencing homelessness, as defined by HUD, that delivers
supportive services, including case management, and either short-
term (1 to 3 months), or medium-term (4 to 24 months) rental
assistance, based on participants needs.

1.1.2.2. The Contractor must provide supportive services for no longer than
six (6) months after rental assistance ends.

1.1.2.3. The Contractor must re-evaluate, at least annually, whether the
program participants lack sufficient resources and support
networks necessary to retain housing without CoC assistance and
the types and amounts of assistance that the program participants
need to retain housing.

1.1.2.4. The Contractor must ensure that program participants meet with
their case manager at least once per month to assist the program
participant with obtaining and maintaining long-term housing
stability. The project is exempt from this requirement if the Violence
Against Women Act of 1994 (42 U.S.C. 13925 etseq.) or the Family
Violence Prevention and Services Act (42 U.S.C. 10401 et seq.)
prohibits the recipient carrying out the project from making its
housing conditional on the participant's acceptance of services.
The Contractor must integrate program participants into the
community and promote housing stability.

1.1.2.5. The Contractor must assist program participants with developing
or increasing their skills and obtaining income, and/or employment.

1.1.2.6. The Contractor must provide or connect program participants with
supportive services.

1.1.2.7. The Contractor must support and document appropriate efforts to
enhance the participant's ability to reach self-sufficiency.

/  '

SS-2024-DBH-05-CONTI-01-A02 B-2.0 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care CAPSC

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #2

1.1.3. Rapid Re-Housina Domestic Violence (RRH DV1 Project (Effective October 1.

20241

1.1.3.1. The Contractor must provide a DV Rapid Re-Housing (RRH)
program, in this Agreement, that is targeted to serve 21 households
comprised of 34 individuals at any given time annually, who are
experiencing homelessness, as defined by HUD, that delivers
supportive services, including case management, and either short-
term (1 to 3 months), or medium-term (4 to 24 months) rental
assistance, based on participants needs. The Contractor must;

1.1.3.1.1. Provide supportive services for no longer than six (6)
months after rental assistance stops.

1.1.3.1.2. Re-evaluate, at least annually, whether the program
participants lack sufficient resources and support
networks necessary to retain housing without
Continuum of Care (CoC) assistance and the types
and amounts of assistance that the program
participants need to retain housing.

1.1.3.1.3. Ensure that program participants meet with their case
manager at least once per month to assist the
program participant with obtaining and maintaining
long-term housing stability. The project is exempt
from this requirement if the Violence Against Women
Act of 1994 (42 U.S.C. 13925 et seq.) or the Family
Violence Prevention and Services Act (42 U.S.C.
10401 et seq.) prohibits the recipient carrying out the
project from making its housing conditional on the
participant's acceptance of services. The Contractor
must integrate program participants into the
community and promote housing stability.

1.1.3.1.4. Assist program participants with developing or
increasing their skills and obtaining income, and/or
employment.

1.1.3.1.5. Provide or connect program participants with
supportive services.

1.1.3.1.6. Support and document appropriate efforts to
enhance the participant's ability to reach self-
sufficiency.

1.1.3.2. The Contractor must provide a Rapid Re-Housing, Permanent
Housing Domestic Violence program, in this Agreement for
individuals, youth and/or families. Participants must be fleeing, or
attempting to flee, domestic violence while experiencing

j  OS

[
SS-2024-DBH-05-CONTI-01-A02 B-2.0 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care CAPSC

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #2

homelessness, or while at imminent risk of homelessness, as
defined by HUD. The Contractor must:

1.1.3.2.1. Provide immediate assistance with identifying safe
and confidential housing options with the support of
Contractor's staff.

1.1.3.2.2. Provide immediate referrals to assist with safety and
security concerns.

1.1.3.2.3. Provide participants with access to training and
support groups that focus on trauma, recovery from
trauma, and other supports.

1.1.3.2.4. Assist participants in finding long-term safe and
permanent housing.

1.1.3.2.5. Provide supportive services, including at least
monthly case management, and connect participants
with supportive services to help participants obtain
and remain in permanent housing.

1.1.4. Coordinated Entry (CE1 (Effective July 1. 20231

1.1.4.1. The Contractor must ensure the implementation of a Coordinated
Entry system, in accordance with the Continuum of Care (CoC)
Program interim rule, 24 CFR Part 578 and as amended, in this
agreement.

1.1.4.2. The Contractor must ensure the project:

1.1.4.2.1. Provides participants with quick access to the most
appropriate services and housing resources
available:

1.1.4.2.2. Incorporates cultural and linguistic competencies in
all engagement, assessment, and referral
coordination activities; and

1.1.4.2.3. Operates a person-centered approach and with
person-centered outcomes.

1.1.4.3. The Contractor must act as the Regional Access Point for the
designated area Strafford and Eastern Rockingham Counties for
the CE System.

1.1.4.4. The Contractor must ensure that there are staff responsible for
supporting or managing the day-to-day functions of the CE System,
which may include any combination of the following: maintaining a
prioritization list; assisting with matching participants to available
housing resources; communicating referrals; facilitating case
conferencing meetings; assisting with grievance and appeal

SS-2024-DBH-05-CONTI-01-A02 B-2.0 Contractor Initials
1/Qyonoc
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care CAPSC

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #2

processes: monitoring CE activity; and preparing CE monitoring
and evaluation reports.

1.1.4.5. The Contractor must review and sign the New Hampshire
Coordinated Entry Partnership Agreement, which outlines the
standards and expectations for participation in and compliance with
policies and procedures which govern the CE System operations.

1.1.4.6. The Contractor must affirmatively market their housing and
supportive services to eligible individuals regardless of race, color,
national origin, religion, sex, age, familial status, or disability who
are least likely to apply in the absence of special outreach, and
maintain records of those marketing activities.

1.1.4.7. The Contractor must post, or otherwise make publicly available, a
notice, provided by the CoC described in Section 1.1.4.1., that
describes the CE System. The Contractor must ensure that the
notice is posted in the agency waiting areas, as well as any areas
where participants may congregate or receive services (e.g., dining
hall). The Contractor must ensure that all staff at each agency know
which personnel within their agency can discuss and explain the
CE System to participants seeking more information.

1.1.4.8. The Contractor must ensure all services provided are physically
accessible to persons with mobility barriers. The Contractor must
ensure that all CE system communications and documentation are
accessible to persons with limited ability to read and understand
English.

1.1.4.9. The Contractor must ensure that all persons who are fleeing or
attempting to flee domestic violence, dating violence, sexual
assault, or stalking have immediate and confidential access to
available crisis services within the defined CE System geographic
area as described in Section 1.1.4.3 and are referred to the

Coordinated Entry Domestic Violence Regional Access Point upon
participant request.

1.1.4.10. The Contractor must ensure that all persons served by the CE
System are assessed using the approved CoC Coordinated Entry
Assessment tools. The Contractor must use these tools to ensure

that all persons served are assessed in a consistent manner, using
the same process. The Contractor must:

1.1.4.10.1. Ensure that participant assessment information is
updated at least once a year if the participant is
served by the CE System for more than 12 months
within HMIS or other comparable database as
directed by the Department. Staff may update
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participant records with new information as new or
updated information becomes known by staff;

1.1.4.10.2. Conduct assessments in accordance with the

policies and procedures of the CE System. The
assessment process will progressively collect only
enough participant information to prioritize and refer
participants to available CoC housing and support
services; and

1.1.4.10.3. Conduct an annual assessment of the service needs

of all program participants and adjust services as
necessary, per 24 CFR 578.

1.1.4.11. The Contractor must collect accurate and meaningful data on
persons served by the CE System, review evaluation results, and
offer insights about potential improvements to CE System
processes and operations per HUD requirements.

1.1.4.12. The Contractor must determine whether the program participants'
eligibility was adequately documented in terms of their homeless
status upon entry into the program per 24 CFR 578.103.

1.1.5. Coordinated Entrv (CEj. Domestic Violence (DV1 (Effective December 1.

2023)

1.1.5.1. The Contractor must provide a CE program as described in Section
1.1.4.

1.1.5.2. The Contractor must ensure that, per the United States Department
of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) in 24 CFR 578.3.,
participants are:

1.1.5.2.1. Fleeing domestic violence; or

1.1.5.2.2. Are attempting to flee domestic violence.

1.1.5.3. The Contractor must collaborate with providers within the
Continuum of Care to accomplish objectives that include, but are
not limited to:

1.1.5.3.1. Providing improved levels of expedited screening,
identification, assessment, and referral services for
individuals, youth, and families in need of DV and
housing assistance;

1.1.5.3.2. Providing an expanded amount of trauma-informed
outreach coordination between individuals, youth and
families needing DV services, the 211 system,
housing providers and victim service providers within
the Balance of State Continuum of Care.
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1.1.5.3.3. Providing individuals, youth and families in need of
DV services with specialized case management,
housing and DV services.

1.1.5.3.4. Providing accurate data collection that better informs
all stakeholders of the scope of the DV population
and its challenges.

1.2. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.2.1. The Contractor must adhere to all terms and conditions as set forth in the
approved HUD Project Application #SF-424.

1.2.2. The Contractor must ensure that participants meet at least one, or more, of
the qualifications of homelessness, as defined by HUD in 24 CFR 578.3.

1.2.3. The Contractor must participate in the regional and CoC CE System.

1.2.4. For the purposes of this Agreement, all references to days means business
days, excluding state and federal holidays.

1.2.5. The Contractor must participate in meetings with the Department as requested
by the Department.

1.2.6. The Contractor must ensure staff participate in training as required by the
Department.

1.2.7. The Contractor must ensure the program includes, but is not limited to;

1.2.7.1. Utilization of a service provision model that ensures:

1.2.7.1.1. Barriers to entering housing are not imposed beyond
those required by federal regulations or state laws;
and

1.2.7.1.2. Participation terminates only for the most severe
reasons, after available options to maintain housing
are exhausted, as detailed in HUD regulations, 24
CFR 578.91.

1.2.7.2. Development of an ongoing assessment of Housing and
Supportive Services that is provided to participants in order to
deliver assistance in obtaining necessary skills and resources to
live in the community independently.

1.2.8. The Contractor must ensure participants connect with supportive services and
community resources to meet basic needs including, but not limited to:
housing, safety, food, mental health and medical care. The Contractor must
ensure:

1.2.8.1. Participants increase safety through planning and trauma-informed
resource provision;
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1.2.8.2. Facilitation of the transition of individuals, youth, and families
experiencing homelessness to permanent housing and maximized
self-sufficiency;

1.2.8.3. Participants are empowered by Contractor's program to increase
safety and regain control and independence;

1.2.8.4. Participants are offered connections to assistance in applying for
Compensation funds, help filing for restraining orders, court
advocacy and referrals to free legal services; and

1.2.8.5. Households with children will be connected to education resources,

school staff, and childcare services, based on need.

1.2.9. The Contractor must conduct an annual assessment of service needs of the

program participants and adjust the services accordingly.

1.2.10. The Contractor must ensure their staff assist with referrals for substance

misuse, mental health, medical needs, peer support, or any other need for
referral assistance identified by the participant.

1.2.11. The Contractor must assess project outcomes, to include participants moving
into and retaining permanent housing, as well as participants' connections with
community and mainstream services, to increase independence and
household income to sustain permanent housing.

1.2.12. The Contractor must actively participate in reviews conducted by the
Department, onsite or remotely, as determined by the Department or HUD, on
an annual basis, or as otherwise requested by the Department, that must
include, but are not limited to, participant files and financial data to ensure
compliance with contract objectives, state policies and federal regulations. The
Contractor must:

1.2.12.1. Ensure the Department and HUD have access to participant files;

1.2.12.2. Ensure financial data is available, as requested by the Department
and/ or HUD; and

1.2.12.3. Provide other information that assists in determining contract
compliance, as requested by the Department and/ or HUD.

1.2.13. Notwithstanding the confidentiality procedures established under 24 CFR Part
578.103(b), HUD, the HUD Office of the Inspector General, and the
Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their authorized
representatives, must have the right of access to all books, documents,
papers, or other records of the Contractor that are pertinent to the (CoC) grant,
in order to make audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcripts. These rights
of access are not limited to the required retention period, but last as long as
the records are retained.

C—DS
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1.2.14. The Contractor must adhere to federal and state financial and confidentiality
laws, and comply with the approved HUD CoC program application, program
narratives, budget detail and narrative, and amendments thereto, as detailed
in the applicable Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) CoC Project
Application approved by HUD.

1.2.15. The Contractor must cooperate fully with, and must answer all questions
related to this Agreement from representatives of state or federal agencies
who may conduct periodic observation and review of performance, activities,
and conduct an inspection of records and documents.

1.2.16. The Contractor must provide services according to the HUD regulations
outlined in Public Law 102-550, 24 CFR Part 578, the CoC Program, HUD
Project Application #SF-424 and other written appropriate HUD
policies/directives except for where HUD waivers are granted.

1.2.17. The Contractor must ensure participating individuals, youth, and families meet
the requirement definition of homelessness, or at imminent risk of
homelessness qualifications, as defined in HUD regulations, to be eligible for
contract services, as applicable to the project.

1.2.18. The Contractor must utilize the New Hampshire Homeless Management
Information System (NH HMIS) as the primary reporting tool for outcomes and
activities of shelter and housing programs funded through this contract. The
Contractor must;

1.2.18.1. Ensure all programs are licensed to provide client level data into
the NH HMIS or into a comparable database, per 24 CFR 578,
eCFR :: 24 CFR Part 578 - Continuum of Care Prooram: and

1.2.18.2. Follow NH HMIS policy, including specific information required for
data entry, accuracy of data entered, and time required for data
entry. Refer to Exhibit K for Information Security requirements and
Exhibit I for Privacy requirements.

1.2.19. The Contractor must comply with all record-keeping requirements as set forth
by HUD under 24 CFR 578.103.

1.2.20. The Contractor must establish and maintain standard operating procedures to
ensure CoC program funds are used in accordance with 24 CFR 578, 2 CFR
Part 500, and must establish and maintain sufficient records to enable HUD
and the Department to determine Contractor compliance, including but not
limited to:

1.2.20.1. Continuum of Care Records. The Contractor must maintain the

following documentation related to establishing and operating a
CoC:

GD3
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1.2.20.1.1.

1.2.20.1.2.

1.2.20.1.3.

Records of Homeless Status. The Contractor must

maintain acceptable evidence of homeless status in
accordance with 24 CFR 576.500(b):

Records of at Risk of Homelessness Status. The

Contractor must maintain records that establish "at

risk of homelessness" status of each individual or

family who receives CoC homelessness prevention
assistance, as identified in 24 CFR 576.500(c); and

Records of Reasonable Belief of Imminent Threat of

Harm. The Contractor must maintain documentation

of each program participant who moved to a different
CoC due to imminent threat of further domestic

violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking,
as defined in 24 CFR 578.51(c)(3). The Contractor
must retain documentation that includes, but is not
limited to:

1.2.20.1.3.1. The original incidence of domestic
violence, dating violence, sexual
assault, or stalking, only if the original
violence is not already documented in
the program participant's case file.
This may be written observation of the
housing or service provider; a letter or
other documentation from a victim

service provider, social worker, legal
assistance provider, pastoral
counselor, mental health provider, or
other professional from whom the
victim has sought assistance; medical
or dental records; court records or law

enforcement records; or written
certification by the program participant
to whom the violence occurred or by
the head of household; and

1.2.20.1.3.2. The reasonable belief of imminent

threat of further domestic violence,
dating violence, or sexual assault or
stalking, which would include threats
from a third-party, such as a friend or
family member ohhe perpetrator of the
violence. This may be written
observation by the housing or service
provider; a letter or other

-OSGos
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documentation from a victim service

provider, social worker, legal
assistance provider, pastoral
counselor, mental health provider, or
other professional from whom the
victim has sought assistance; current
restraining order; recent court order or
other court records; law enforcement
report or records; communication
records from the perpetrator of the
violence or family members or friends
of the perpetrator of the violence,
including emails, voicemails, text
messages, and social media posts; or
a written certification by the program
participant to whom the violence
occurred or the head of household.

1.2.20.2. Records of Annual Income. For each program participant who
receives housing assistance where rent or an occupancy charge is
paid by the program participant, the Contractor must keep the
following documentation of annual income:

1.2.20.2.1. Income evaluation form specified by HUD and
completed by the Contractor;

1.2.20.2.2. Source documents, which include but are not limited
to:

1.2.20.2.2.1. Most recent wage statement;

1.2.20.2.2.2. Unemployment compensation
statement;

1.2.20.2.2.3. Public benefits statement, and bank
statements for the assets held by the
program participant; and

1.2.20.2.2.4. Income received before the date of the

evaluation.

1.2.20.2.3. To the extent that source documents are

unobtainable, a written statement by a relevant third
party, which may include an employer or a
government benefits administrator, or the written
certification by the Contractor's intake staff of the oral
verification by the relevant third party of the income
the program participant received over the most recent
period; or

SS-2024-DBH-05-CONTI-01-A02 B-2,0 Contractor Initials
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1.2.20.2.4. To the extent that source documents and third-party
verification are unobtainable, the written certification
by the program participant of the amount of income
that the program participant is reasonably expected
to receive over the three (3) month period following
the evaluation.

1.2.20.3. Program Participant Records. In addition to evidence of

homelessness status or at-risk-of-homelessness status, as
applicable, the Contractor must keep records for each program
participant that document:

1.2.20.3.1. The services and assistance provided to that
program participant, including evidence that the
Contractor conducted an annual assessment of

services for those program participants that remain in
the program for more than a year and adjusted the
service package accordingly, and including case
management services as provided in 24 CFR
578.37(a)(1)(ii)(F): and

1.2.20.3.2. Where applicable, compliance with the termination of
assistance requirement in 24 CFR 578.91.

1.2.20.4. Housing Standards. The Contractor must retain documentation of

compliance with the housing standards in 24 CFR 578.75(b),
including inspection reports.

1.2.20.5. Services Provided. The Contractor must document the types of
supportive services provided under the Contractor's program and
the amounts spent on those services. The Contractor must keep
documentation that the records were reviewed at least annually
and that the service package offered to program participants was
adjusted as necessary.

1.2.21. The Contractor must maintain records that document compliance with:

1.2.21.1. The organizational conflict-of-interest reguirements in 24 CFR

578.95(c);

1.2.21.2. The CoC board conflict-of-interest reguirements in 24 CFR

578.95(b); and

1.2.21.3. The other conflicts reguirements in 24 CFR 578.95fd).

1.2.22. The Contractor must develop, implement and retain a copy of the personal
conflict-of-interest policy that complies with the requirements in 24 CFR
578.95, including records supporting any exceptions to the personal conflict-
of-interest prohibitions.

1.2.23. The Contractor must comply and retain documentation of compliance with:Gds
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1.2.23.1. The homeless participation requirements in accordance with 24
CFR 578.75(g):

1.2.23.2. The faith-based activities requirements in accordance with 24 CFR
578.87(b);

1.2.23.3. Requirements of 24 CFR 578.93(c) for affirmatively furthering fair
housing by maintaining copies of all marketing, outreach, and other
materials used to inform eligible persons of the program;

1.2.23.4. Other federal requirements in 24 CFR 578.99, as applicable;

1.2.23.5. Other records specified by HUD. The Contractor must keep other
records as specified by HUD; and

1.2.23.6. Procurement requirements in 24 CFR 85.36 and 24 CFR part 84.

1-2.24. Confidentiality. In addition to meeting specific confidentiality and security
requirements for HMIS data (76 FR 76917), the Contractor must develop and
implement written procedures to ensure:

1.2.24.1. All records containing protected identifying information of any
participant who applies for and/or receives CoC assistance are
kept secure and confidential;

1.2.24.2. The address or location of any family violence project, assisted with
CoC funds, are not made public, except with written authorization
of the person responsible for the operation of the project; and

1.2.24.3. The address or location of any housing of a program participant is
not made public, except as provided under a preexisting privacy
policy of the recipient or sub recipient and consistent with state and
local laws regarding privacy and obligations of confidentiality.

1.3. Contract Administration

1.3.1. The Contractor must have appropriate levels of staff to attend all meetings or
trainings requested by the Department's Bureau of Homeless Services (BHS),
including training in data security and confidentiality, according to state and
federal laws. To the extent possible, BHS must notify the Contractor of the
need to attend such meetings five (5) working days in advance of each
meeting.

1.3.2. The Contractor must inform the Department of any staffing changes within
thirty (30) days of the change.

1.3.3. Upon request by the Department, the Contractor must participate with the
Department in a review, onsite or remotely at the Department's discretion, of
the Contractor's participant files and at least one month of financial data to
ensure compliance with the contractual objectives.

1.4. Reporting Requirements

GDS
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1.4.1. The Contractor must submit an Annual Performance Report (APR) to the
Department within thirty (30) days after the Contract Completion Date on the
form required, or specified, by the Department.

1.4.2. The Contractor must ensure the APR is submitted to electronically as directed
by the Department.

1.4.3. The Contractor must ensure the APR includes a summary of aggregate results
of the project activities, consistent with the format proposed in the Contractor's
application submitted to HUD for the relevant fiscal year COC Notice of
Funding Opportunity (NOFO).

1.4.4. The Contractor must submit other reports as requested by the Department in
compliance with MM HMIS policy and/or Department policies and procedures.

1.4.5. The Contractor may be required to collect and share data with the Department,
in a format specified by the Department, for the provision of other key data and
metrics, including client-level demographic, performance, and service data.

1.5. Background Checks

1.5.1. Prior to permitting any individual to provide services under this Agreement, the
Contractor must ensure that said individual has undergone:

1.5.1.1. A criminal background check, at the Contractor's expense, and has
no convictions for crimes that represent evidence of behavior that
could endanger individuals served under this Agreement;

1.5.1.2. A name search of the Department's Bureau of Elderly and Adult
Services (BEAS) State Registry, pursuant to RSA 161-F:49, with
results indicating no evidence of behavior that could endanger
individuals served under this Agreement; and

1.5.1.3. A name search of the Department's Division for Children, Youth
and Families (DCYF) Central Registry pursuant to RSA 169-C:35,
with results indicating no evidence of behavior that could endanger
individuals served under this Agreement.

1.6. Confidential Data

1.6.1. The Contractor must meet all information security and privacy requirements
as set by the Department and in accordance with the Department's Information
Security Requirements Exhibit as referenced below.

1.6.2. The Contractor must ensure any individuals involved in delivering services
through this Agreement contract sign an attestation agreeing to access, view,
store, and discuss Confidential Data in accordance with federal and state laws

and regulations and the Department's Information Security Requirements
Exhibit. The Contractor must ensure said individuals have a justifiable
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business need to access confidential data. The Contractor must provide
attestations upon Department request.

1.7. Privacy Impact Assessment

1.7.1. Upon request, the Contractor must allow and assist the Department in
conducting a Privacy Impact Assessment (PIA) of its
system(s)/application(s)/web portal(s)/website(s) or Department
system(s)/application(s)/web portal(s)/website(s) hosted by the Contractor, if
Personally Identifiable Information (Pll) is collected, used, accessed, shared,
or stored. To conduct the PIA the Contractor must provide the Department
access to applicable systems and documentation sufficient to allow the
Department to assess, at minimum, the following:

1.7.1.1. How Pll is gathered and stored;

1.7.1.2. Who will have access to Pll;

1.7.1.3. How Pll will be used in the system;

1.7.1.4. How individual consent will be achieved and revoked; and

1.7.1.5. Privacy practices.

1.7.2. The Department may conduct follow-up PIAs in the event there are either
significant process changes or new technologies impacting the collection,
processing or storage of Pll.

1.8. Department Owned Devices, Systems and Network Usage

1.8.1. Contractor End Users, defined in the Department's Information Security
Requirements Exhibit that is incorporated into this Agreement, authorized by
the Department's Information Security Office to use a Department issued
device (e.g. computer, tablet, mobile telephone) or access the Department
network in the fulfilment of this Agreement, must:

1.8.1.1. Sign and abide by applicable Department and New Hampshire
Department of Information Technology (NH DolT) use agreements,
policies, standards, procedures and guidelines, and complete
applicable trainings as required;

1.8.1.2. Use the information that they have permission to access solely for
conducting official Department business and agree that all other
use or access is strictly forbidden including, but not limited, to
personal or other private and non-Department use, and that at no
time shall they access or attempt to access information without
having the express authority of the Department to do so;

1.8.1.3. Not access or attempt to access information in a manner
inconsistent with the approved policies, procedures, and/or
agreement relating to system entry/access;
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1.8.1.4. Not copy, share, distribute, sub-license, modify, reverse engineer,
rent, or sell software licensed, developed, or being evaluated by
the Department, and at all times must use utmost care to protect
and keep such software strictly confidential in accordance with the
license or any other agreement executed by the Department;

1.8.1.5. Only use equipment, software, or subscription(s) authorized by the
Department's Information Security Office ordesignee;

1.8.1.6. Not install non-standard software on any Department equipment
unless authorized by the Department's Information Security Office
or designee;

1.8.1.7. Agree that email and other electronic communication messages
created, sent, and received on a Department-issued email system
are the property of the Department of New Hampshire and to be
used for business purposes only. Email is defined as "internal
email systems" or "Department-funded email systems."

1.8.1.8. Agree that use of email must follow Department and NH Doll
policies, standards, and/or guidelines; and

1.8.1.9. Agree when utilizing the Department's email system:

1.8.1.9.1. To only use a Department email address assigned to
them with a "@ affiliate.DHHS.NH.Gov".

1.8.1.9.2. Include in the signature lines information identifying
the End User as a non-Department workforce
member; and

1.8.1.9.3. Ensure the following confidentiality notice is
embedded underneath the signature line:

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: "This message may contain
information that is privileged and confidential and is
intended only for the use of the individual(s) to whom it is
addressed. If you receive this message in error, please
notify the sender immediately and delete this electronic
message and any attachments from your system. Thank
you for your cooperation."

1.8.1.10. Contractor End Users with a Department issued email, access or
potential access to Confidential Data, and/or a workspace in a
Department building/facility, must:

1.8.1.10.1. Complete the Department's Annual Information
Security & Compliance Awareness Training prior to
accessing, viewing, handling, hearing, or transmitting
Department Data or Confidential Data.

w
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1.8.1.10.2. Sign the Department's Business Use and
Confidentiality Agreement and Asset Use
Agreement, and the NH Doll Department wide
Computer Use Agreement upon execution of the
Agreement and annually thereafter.

1.8.1.10.3. Only access the Department's intranet to view the
Department's Policies and Procedures and
Information Security webpages.

1.8.1.11. Contractor agrees, if any End User is found to be in violation of any
of the above terms and conditions, said End User may face
removal from the Agreement, and/or criminal and/or civil
prosecution, if the act constitutes a violation of law.

1.8.1.12. Contractor agrees to notify the Department a minimum of three
business days prior to any upcoming transfers or terminations of
End Users who possess Department credentials and/or badges or
who have system privileges. If End Users who possess Department
credentials and/or badges or who have system privileges resign or
are dismissed without advance notice, the Contractor agrees to
notify the Department's Information Security Office or designee
immediately.

1.8.2. Workspace Requirement

1.8.2.1. If applicable, the Department will work with Contractor to determine
requirements for providing necessary workspace and State
equipment for its End Users.

1.9. Contract End-of-Life Transition Services

1.9.1. General Requirements

1.9.1.1. If applicable, upon termination or expiration of the Agreement the
parties agree to cooperate in good faith to effectuate a smooth
secure transition of the Services from the Contractor to the

Department and, if applicable, the Contractor engaged by the
Department to assume the Services previously performed by the
Contractor for this section the new Contractor shall be known as
"Recipient"). Ninety (90) days prior to the end-of the contract or
unless otherwise specified by the Department, the Contractor must
begin working with the Department and if applicable, the new
Recipient to develop a Data Transition Plan (DTP). The
Department shall provide the DTP template to the Contractor.

1.9.1.2. The Contractor must use reasonable efforts to assist the Recipient,
in connection with the transition from the performance of Services
by the Contractor and its End Users to the performance of such
Services. This may include assistance with the secure transfer of

'  >—D8

w
SS-2024-DBH-05-CONTI-01-A02 8-2.0 Contractor Initials

Community Action Partnership of Stratford County Page 17 of 22 Date



Docusign Envelope ID; 52B46731-BA61-4736-9764-D6012447DD29

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care CAPSC

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #2

records (electronic and hard copy), transition of historical data
(electronic and hard copy), the transition of any such Service from
the hardware, software, network and telecommunications
equipment and internet-related information technology
infrastructure ("Internal IT Systems") of Contractor to the Internal
IT Systems of the Recipient and cooperation with and assistance
to any third-party consultants engaged by Recipient in connection
with the Transition Services.

1.9.1.3. If a system, database, hardware, software, and/or software
licenses (Tools) was purchased or created to manage, track,
and/or store Department Data in relationship to this contract said
Tools will be inventoried and returned to the Department, along
with the inventory document, once transition of Department Data is
complete.

1.9.1.4. The internal planning of the Transition Services by the Contractor
and its End Users shall be provided to the Department and if
applicable the Recipient in a timely manner. Any such Transition
Services shall be deemed to be Services for purposes of this
Agreement.

1.9.1.5. Should the data Transition extend beyond the end of the
Agreement, the Contractor agrees that the Information Security
Requirements, and if applicable, the Department's Business
Associate Agreement terms and conditions remain in effect until
the Data Transition is accepted as complete by the Department.

1.9.1.6. In the event where the Contractor has comingled Department Data
and the destruction or Transition of said data is not feasible, the
Department and Contractor will jointly evaluate regulatory and
professional standards for retention requirements prior to
destruction, refer to the terms and conditions of the Department's
DHHS Information Security Requirements Exhibit.

1.9.2. Completion of Transition Services

1.9.2.1. Each service or Transition phase shall be deemed completed (and
the Transition process finalized) at the end of 15 business days
after the product, resulting from the Service, is delivered to the
Department and/or the Recipient in accordance with the mutually
agreed upon Transition plan, unless within said 15 business day
term the Contractor notifies the Department of an issue requiring
additional time to complete said product.

1.9.2.2. Once all parties agree the data has been migrated the Contractor
will have 30 days to destroy the data per the terms and conditions
of the Department's Information Security Requirements Exhibit.

OS
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Docusign Envelope ID: 52B46731-BA61-4736-9764-D6012447DD29

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care CAPSC

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #2

1.9.3. Disagreement over Transition Services Results

1.9.3.1. In the event the Department is not satisfied with the results of the
Transition Service, the Department shall notify the Contractor, in
writing, stating the reason for the lack of satisfaction within 15
business days of the final product or at any time during the data
Transition process. The Parties shall discuss the actions to be
taken to resolve the disagreement or issue. If an agreement is not
reached, at any time the Department shall be entitled to initiate
actions in accordance with the Agreement.

2. Exhibits incorporated

2.1. The Contractor must use and disclose Protected Health Information in compliance
with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information (Privacy
Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in accordance with the attached Exhibit I,
Business Associate Agreement, which has been executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor must manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor must comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached hereto
and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Additional Terms

3.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes
3.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal legislation

or court orders may have an impact on the Services described herein, the
State has the right to modify Service priorities and expenditure
requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

3.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services (CLAS)

3.2.1. The Contractor must submit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement
Effective Date, a detailed description of the communication access and
language assistance services to be provided to ensure meaningful access
to programs and/or services to individuals with limited English proficiency:
individuals who are deaf or have hearing loss; individuals who are blind or
have low vision; and individuals who have speech challenges.

3.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

3.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of this Agreement must include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract

SS-2024-DBH-05-CONTI-01-A02 B-2,0 Contractor Initials
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Docusign Envelope ID: 52B46731-BA61-4736-9764-D6012447DD29

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care CAPSC

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #2

with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New Hampshire
and/or such other funding sources as were available or required, e.g., the
United States Department of Health and Human Services."

3.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under this Agreement must have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

3.3.3. The Department must retain copyright ownership for any and all original
materials produced, including, but not limited to:

3.3.3.1. Brochures:

3.3.3.2. Resource directories;

3.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines;

3.3.3.4. Posters; and

3.3.3.5. Reports

3.3.4. The Contractor must not reproduce any materials produced under this
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

3.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

3.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor must
comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state, county and
municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which must impose an order or duty upon the contractor
with respect to the operation of the facility or the provision of the services
at such facility. If any governmental license or permit must be required for
the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times
comply with the terms and conditions of each such license or permit. In
connection with the foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby
covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Agreement the facilities
must comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the
State Office of the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and
must be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

3.5. Eligibility Determinations

3.5.1. If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals,
youth, and/ or families such eligibility verifications must be made in
accordance with applicable federal and state laws, regulations, orders,
guidelines, policies and procedures.

SS-2024-DBH-05-CONT1-01-A02 B-2.0 Contractor Initials
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EXHIBIT B, Amendment #2

3.5.2. Eligibility determinations must be made on forms provided, or required by
the Department for that purpose and must be made and remade, or
reissued at such times as are prescribed by the Department.

3.5.3. In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the
Contractor must maintain a data file on each participant of services
hereunder, which file must include all information necessary to support an
eligibility determination and such other information as the Department
requests. The Contractor must furnish the Department with all forms and
documentation regarding eligibility determinations that the Department
may request or require.

3.5.4. The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as
well as individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing
regarding that determination. The Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees that all applicants for services must be permitted to fill out an
application form and that each applicant or re-applicant must be informed
of his/her right to a fair hearing in accordance with applicable regulations.

4. Records

4.1. The Contractor must keep records that include, but are not limited to:

4.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received or
collected by the Contractor.

4.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting procedures
and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and
expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and to include,
without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of
costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for
materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards,
payrolls, and other records requested or required by the Department.

4.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records must include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such
recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all invoices
submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such services.

4.2. Period of Record Retention. The Contractor must ensure all records, originals or
copies made by microfilming, photocopying, or other similar methods, pertaining to
CoC funds are retained for five (5) years following the Contract Completion Date
and receipt of final payment by the Contractor, unless records are otherwise required
to be maintained for a period in excess of the five (5) year period according to state
or federal law or regulation.

GDS
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4.3. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any
of their designated representatives must have access to ail reports and records
maintained pursuant to this Agreement for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts
and transcripts.

4.4. If, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report, the Department must disallow any
expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder, the Department retains the
right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are disallowed or
to recover such sums from the Contractor.

^ DS
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Docusign Envelope ID: DEA48016-FC39-4D28-A377-810AE8883DA4

Exhibit C-9, Budget, Amendment #2

CAPSC-PSH

CoC Funds - NH0053L1T002414

YR3

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY
Rental Assistance $  79,920 $- j " ■ . $  79,920 . -■

Supportive Services $  17,015 $ $ $ $ $ $  17,015 $ $
Administration $  3,837 $ $ $ $ $ $  3,837 $ 5
25% Required Match $  25,193 $ $ $  25,193 $ $  .. $ $
TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE $  125,965 $ $ $  25,193 .  - $  100,772 $ $

SFY2027 - 7/1/26-10/31/26
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY
Rental Assistance $  39,960 $ $ $ $  . -■ $  ' - $  39.960 S
Supportive Services $  8,507 $ $ $ $ $ $  8,507 $ $
Administration $  1,919 $ $ $  ; - $ $ S  1,919 $ S
25% Required Match $  12,597 $ $ $  12,597 $ $ $ $
TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE $  62,983 $  - $ $  12,597 $ $  50,386 $ . -

TOTAL - ll/i/25-10/31/26
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY
Rental Assistance $ 119,880 $ $ $ $ $ $ 119,880 $-r. , . . ■
Supportive Services $ 25,522 $ $ $ $ $ $  25,522 $ $
Administration $ 5,756 $ s S R $ $ $ 5.756 $ $
25% Required Match $ 37,790 $ $ $ 37,790 $ $ $ $
TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE $ 188,948 $ $ $ 37,790 %- $ S 151,158 $ $  .

ToUl W/O Match 151,158

SS-2024-OBH-05-CONTI-01-A02
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County
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Docusign Envelope ID: DEA48016-FC39-4D28-A377-810AE8883DA4

Exhibit C-10, Budget, Amendment #2

CAPSC- CE

CoC Funds - NH009eLlT002409

YR3

SFY2026 - 7/1/25-6/30/26
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Supportive Services $ 152,499 $ $ $ ^,  , ■ ■ $ $ $ 152,499 $  - $

Administration S 2,836 $ $ $ $ S 2,836 $ $  ̂ -
25% Required Match $ 38,834 $ $ $  38,834 $ $

"rtarii 11> III m 1 1 -'

$ $

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE $ 194,169 s  -• S 38,834 $ $ $ 155.335 Is $

LH).JUiKW."...

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Supportive Services S 152,499 :$ $ $  - $  ■ ■ $ 152,499 $  - $

Administration $ 2,836 $ $ $ $  - $ 2,836 $ $

25% Required Match $ 38,834 $ $ $ 38,834 $ $' $ $ -

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE $ 194,169 $ $ $ 38,834 $ $ $ 155,335 $ $  . ^

Total W/0 Match 155,335

Contractor Initiais
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Docusign Envelope ID: DEA48016-FC39-4D28-A377-810AE8883DA4

Exhibit C-11, Budget, Amendment #2

CAPSC CE DV

CoC Funds - NH0121D1T002405

YR3

■SFY2026 - 12/l/25-6/30/2g'
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY
Supportive Services S 141,292 $ $ r  - S $  141,292 $ S
Administration $ 6,665 $ $ $  - - - $ $ $ 6,665 $ $
25% Required Match $ 36,989 $ $ $ 36,989 $ $ $ $
TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE $ 184,946 $ $ S 36,989 $ $ $ 147,957 $ $

—■ -

SFY2027 - 7/1/26-11/30/26
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY
Supportive Services $ 100,923 $ $  - $ $ $ 100,923 $ $
Administration $ 4,760 $ $ $ $ $ $ 4.760 $ $
25% Required MatcJi $ 26,421 $ $ $ 26,421 $ $ $ $
TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE S 132,104 $ $ $ 26,421 $ $ $ 105,683 $ $

12/1/25 TlfWr
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY
Supportive Services $  242,215 $ - . •$ -r-- - $  242,215
Administration $  11,425 $ $ $  .. - $ $ $  11,425 $ $
25% Required Match $  63,410 $ $ $  63,410 $  ■ - $ „ - $ $
TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE $  317,050 » $ $  63,410 ,$ $ $  253,640 $ $

Total W/0 Match 253,640

SS-2024-OBH-05-CONTI-01-A02
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Docusign Envelope ID: DEA48016-FC39-4D28-A377-810AE8883DA4

Exhibit C-12, Budget, Amendment #2

CAPSC RRH

CoC Funds - NH0124L1T00240S

YR3

' SFY2026 - 12/1/25-6/30/26 3®
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Rental Assistance $  124,047 « $ $■■ $ $ $  124.047 . $
Supportive Services $  42.743 $ $ $ $ $ $  42,743 :$ $

Administration $  3,807 $ $ $ $ $ $  3,807 6 $
25% Required Match S  42,649 $ $ $  42.649 S $  . $ S
TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE S  213,246 $ $ $  42.649 $ $ $  170,597 $ $

SFY2027 - 7/1/26-11/30/26
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY
Rental Assistance $  88,605 $ $ $ $ $ $  88,605 a - ' $  _ ■

Supportive Services $  30,531 $ $ $ $ $ $  30,531 ^  ■ - $

Administration $  1,903 $ $ $ $ $  1,903 $ $

25% Required Match $  30,260 $ $ $  30,260 $ $  ■ $ $
TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE $  151,299 $ $ %  30,260 $ $  _ $  121,039 .  . ■ .

TOTAL -12/1/25-11/30/26
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY
Rental Assistance $  212,652 $ $  . . - $ $ $  212,652 5 $  -
Supportive Services $  73,274 $ $ $ $ $ $  73,274 as - $
Administration $  5,710 $ $ S . $ $ $  5,710 $ $

25% Required Match 5  72,909 $ $ $  72,909 $ $ $
TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE $  364,545 $ $ $  72,909 s $ S  291,636 $ $

Total W/0 Match 291,636

Contractor Initials
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Docusign Envelope ID: DEA48016-FC3^D28-A377-810AE8883DA4

Exhibit C-14, Budget, Amendment #2

CAPSC- CE

CoC Funds - NH0096L1T002409

YR4

m

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Supportive Services $  153,125 S $ $ t" - -f $  153,125 S  - $

Administration $  6,139 $ $ $ $ $ $  6,139 $ $

25% Required Match $  39,816 $ $ $  39,816 $ $ $ $

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE %  199,080 $ $ $  39,816 $ - - $ $  159,264 $ $

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Supportive Services $  153,125 $ S $  ■ $  153,125

Administration $  6.139 $ $ $ $ $ $  6,139 $ $

25% Required Match $  39,816 $ $ $  39,816 $ $  ■ ■ \ $ $

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE $  199,080 $ $ $  39,816 $ $ $  159,264 $ $

Total W/0 Match 159,264

Contractor Initials

r—DS
w

SS-2024-OBH-05-CONTI-01-A02

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County Date
1/5/2026



Docusign Envelope ID: DEA48016-FC39-4D28-A377-810AE8883DA4

Exhibit C-17, Budget, Amendment #2

CAPSC DV RRH

CoC Funds - NH0164L1T002300

YRl

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTFtACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Rental Assistance $  228,386 $ $  - $ $ $ $  228,386 $  - $

Supportive Services $  152,580 $ $ $ $ $ $  152,580 « $

Administration $  16,166 $ $ $  -- $ $ $  16,166 $ $

25% Required Match $  99,283 $ $ $  99,283 $ $ $ $

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE $  496,415 $ $ $  99,283 $ $ %  397,132 $ $

1  . . .. ... SFY2026 - 7/1/25-11/30/25

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Rental Assistance $  29,303 $ $■ $  - $ $ $  29,303 'i" - $

Supportive Services $  93,430 $ $ $ $ $ $  93,430 $
Administration $  7,517 $ $ $ - . ...-'-v. . $ $ $  7,517 $ $

25% Required Match $  32,563 $ $ $  32,563 - $ 3  . ■ • • . $ $
TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE $  162,813 $ $ $  32,563 $ $  130,250 $ $

TOTAL - 10/1/24-11/30/25
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTFtACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Rental Assistance $ 257,689 $ $ $ $ $ $ 257,689 $ $

Supportive Services $ 246,010 $ $ $  - $ $ $  246,010 $ $

Administration $ 23,683 $ $ $  - - $ $ $ 23,683 $ $

25% Required Match $ 131,846 $ $ $ 131,846 $ $ $ $
TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE $ 659,228 $ $ $ 131,846 $ $ S 527,382 $ $

Total W/0 Match 527,382

SS-2024-DBH-05-CONTI-01-A02
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Docusign Envelope ID: DEA48016-FC39-4D28-A377-810AE8883DA4

Exhibit C-18, Budget, Amendment #2

CAPSC DV RRH

CoC Funds - NH0164L1T002401

YR2

- r ■ : SFY2026- 12/1/25-6/30/26

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Rental Assistance $  178,997 $ $ $ $ $ $  178,997 $ $

Supportive Services $  152,116 $ $ $ $ $ $  152,116 $ $

Administration $  13,815 $ $ $ $ $ $  13,815 $ $

25% Required Match $  86,232 $ $ $  86,232 $ S. „ - $ $
TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE $  431,160 $ $ $  86,232 $ $ $  344,928 $ $

^W^=Y2027^/l/26-ilM^'l^—"
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTFtACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Rental Assistance $  127,855 $ $ $ $ $ $  127,855 ■$ $
Supportive Services $  108,655 $ $ $ $ $ $  108,655 $ $
Administration $  9,868 $ $ $ $ $ $  9,868 $ $
25% Required Match $  61,595 $ $ $  61,595 $ $ $ $
TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE $  307,973 $ $ $  61,595 $ $ $  246,378 $ $

pKl'"'- TOTAL -12/1/25-11/30/26
TOTAL PROGFIAM COST CONTFtACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY
Rental Assistance $  306,852 JiS--'- - ■ ^ $  ■ - $ $ $ $  306,852 T' " - r

Supportive Services $  260,771 S $ $ $ $ $  260,771 $  . -■-
Administration $  23,683 /$ $ $  . - $ $ $  23,683 $ $
25% Required Match $  147,827 $ $ $  147,827 $ $ $
TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE $  739,133 $ $ $  147,827 $ $  - $  591,306 ;i$ $

Total W/O Match 591,306

SS-2024-DBH-05-CONTI-01-A02
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Docusign Envelope ID: DEA48016-FC39-4D28-A377-810AE8883DA4

CAPSC Rapid Re-Housing

|coC Funds - NH0135D1T002302

Exhibit C-19, Budget, Amendment #2

1 ^25-t
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET 1 YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Rental Assistance $  28,612 - $ $ - $ $ $  28,612
-

$  "

Supportive Services $  24,896 p $ $ $ $ $  24,896 $ $

Administration $  2,059 m - $ $  i $ $ $  2.059 $ $

25% Required Match $  13,892 p$ $ $  13,892 $ $  ■ ■ - $ S

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE $  69,459 ^ .-V $ $  13,892 $ i  . - $  55,567

TOTAL - 11/1/24-10/31/25
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Rental Assistance $  28,612 $  - •  ■ V:> - '-•v.. . $  - $  ■ $ 28.612 $- - $  ' -

Supportive Services $ 24,896 k $ $ $  - , - $ 24,896 $ $

Administration S 2,059 S $ $  - $ S $ 2.059 $ $

25% Required Match s 13,892 1$ $ s 13,892 $ $ $

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE $ 69,459
- $ $ 13,892 $ $ $ 55,567 .$„ -

Total W/O Match 55,567

Contractor Initials

—OS

W

SS-2024-DBH-05-CONTI-01-A02

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County Date
1/5/2026



Docusign Envelope ID: DEA48016-FC39-4D28-A377-810AE8883DA4

CAPSC Rapid Re-Housing

|CoC Funds - NH0135D1T002403

Exhibit C-20, Budget, Amendment #2

'SFY2026"-^ 11/1/25-6/30/^'
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY
Rental Assistance $ 71,336 $ $ $  " r ~ - $ S 71,336 $ $ ■
Supportive Services $ 70,374 $ $ $  , $ $ $ 70,374 $ $
Administration S 5,490 $ $ $ . $ $ $ 5.490 $ $
25% Required Match $ 36,800 S $ $ 36,800 $ S  . .L - . $ $
TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE

$ 184.000 $ $ $ 36,800 $ $  : - . % 147,200 $ $

SFY2027 - 7/1/26-10/31/26
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY
Rental Assistance $  35,668 $ $ $ $ $ $  35,668 $  - $
Supportive Services $  35,187 $ $ $ $ $ $  35,187 $ $
Administration $  2,745 $ $ S  ■ ■ ■ - $ $ $  2,745 $ $
25% Required Match $  18,400 $ $ $  18.400 $ $ $
TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE $  92,000 $ $  - ^ $  18,400

-
$ $  73,600 $ $

TOTAL - 11/1/25-10/31/26
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY
Rental Assistance $  107,004 $■ ■ ■■■r" $' ■ $ $  107,004 $ $
Supportive Services $  105,561 $ $ $ $ S $  105,561 $ $
Administration $  8,235 $ $ $, . .. - $ $ $  6,235 $ $25% Required Match $  55,200 $ s $  55,200 $ ■ $ $TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE %  276,000 $ $ $  55,200 $ $ $  220,800 1$ $  - i

Total W/O Match 220,800

SS-2024-OBH-05-CONTI-01-A02
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County

Contractor Initials

C—D3
w

Date
1/5/2026
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Exhibit C-21, Budget, Amendment 02

CAPSC Rapid Re-Housing

|CoC Funds - NH0135D1T(TBD)

SFY2027 - 11/1/26-6/30/27
TOTAIL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHSSHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Rental Assistance $ 61,048 :$ - $ $ $ $ $ 51,048 4■ s

Supportive Services $ 66,391 j$ - $ $ $ $ $ 66,391 $ $
Administration $ 5,490 :$ - $ S $ $ S 6.490 $ 5

25% Required Match $ 30,732 1$ $ s 30,732 $ $ $ $
TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE $ 153,661 $ $ 30,732 $ . . - $ 122,929 JS,.. . $  . .

i  SFY2028 - 7/1/27-10/31/27
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY
Rental Assistance $  25,524 $  - $ $ $ $ $  25,524 iS $
Supportive Services $  33,195 $ $ $ $ $  33,195 j$ $

Administration $  2,745 $ $  . _ - t—■ ... $ $ $  2,745 $ $
25% Required Match $  15,366 ■--$ $ $  15,366 $ $ $
TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE $  76,830 is $ S  15,366 $ $ $  61,464 5$ $

1 ufi\L -13 -

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY
Rental Assistance $  76.572 1$" - $ $ $ $  76,572

-

$

Supportive Services S  99,586 $ $ $ $ $  99,586 $ $
Administration $  8,235 7$ S $ $ $ $  8,235 $ $

25% Required Match $  46,098 s $ S  46,098 $ $ $

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE $  230,491 $ $ $  46,098 $ $ $  184,393 $ $

Total W/O Match 184,393

SS-2024-DBH-05-CONTI-01-A02

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County

Contractor Initials

Gds
1/5/2026

Date



Docusign Envelope ID: DEA48016-FC39-4D28-A377-810AE8883DA4

State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that COMMUNITY ACTION

PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New

Hampshire on May 25, 1965.1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been

received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 65583

Certificate Number: 0007361471

>
Bo.

A
<»•

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 5th day of January A.D. 2026.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



Docusign Envelope ID: DEA48016-FC39-4D28-A377-810AE8883DA4

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

_Sarah Kuhl , hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County .
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on November 19, , 2025 , at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That _Betsey Andrews Parker, Chief Executive Officer, Jamie Swan, Chief Program Officer, and Leslie
Craigen, Chief Finance Officer (may list more than one person)

(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County to enter into contracts or
agreements with the State

(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all documents,
agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her
judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority was valid thirty (30)
days prior to and remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify
that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed
above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the
extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the
State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

,  1/5/2026 I 9:21 AM PST
Dated:

—Signed by:

-806gE4B4604B4E2..

Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Sarah Kuhl

Title: Board Secretary

Rev. 03/24/20
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ACORcf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE OATEiMnuoDmnr)

06/26/2025

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE P0UCIE3
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If tha cartlflcata holdar Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, tha polley(las) must hsva ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or ba andorsad.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to tha tarrns and condHtons of the policy, certain pollclaa may require an endorsamant A atatament on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsament(s).

PtIOOUCER

CGI Insurance, Inc.

S Dartmouth Drive

Auburn NH 0J032

NMtE*'^ Teti Davis

K.e-,: (877) 562-8954 (866) 57S.2a43
TDavistBCGlBuslnessInsurance.com

rNSURERts) AProaomo covsraos NAICe

INSURER A: Hanover Insurance Company 22292

INSURED

Community Action Partnership of Stratford County

S77 Central St, Ste 10

Dover 03820

INSURER B: Eastern Alliance 10724

msuRER c: Philadelphia Indemnity

INSURER D;

WSURSRE:

INSURER E;

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE SEEN REDUCED BY PAID CUIMS

INSR
LTR TYPE Of INSURANCE

MereH-nl;:;:

iTrIKTKT POUCY NUMBER BMai 1  UMtTS

A

X COMMBtaALOENERAt UABIUTY

e  |X| OCCUR
SIM

ZHVA1d213512 07/01/2026 07AJ1/2026

EACH (OCCURRENCE , 1,000,000

1 CUIMS-MAC OAUASe TO RENTED
PREMISES (Eaoccunwctl

, 100,000

X Abuse Liability
MED EXP lAnv on* pinoni , 10,000

personal iADV INJURY , 1,000,000

GEfa AGGREGATE UMiT APPLIES PER:

dl] JECr CZ] LOC
OTHER;

GENERAL AGGREGATE , 3,000,000

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGO j Included
Profasslonal LlabSlty t 1,000,000

A

Ain

X

XMIOaiLE UA8IUTY

AWVA166930 07/01/2026 07/01/2020

COMSINED SINGLE LIMIT
rEaauMentt

I 1,000,000

ANY AUTO

0VW4E0
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

^HEOULEO
ITOS
)N*OWNEO
rrosoNLY

BODILY INJURY (Per peraon) t

8C
At BODILY INJURY (Per ecdOanl) a

X X
N<
At

FrioPERTV OAiWfiE
(

Uninsured motorist a 1.000.0GO

A

X UMBRCLIA UAB

EXCESS UAB

X OCCUR

CUIMS-MAOE UHVAt92t3e 07/01/2025 07/01/2026

EACHlxVuRRSic , 4.000,000

AOOREOATE , 4,000,000

DED 1 XI RETENTION S i 1

B

1 WOftKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS'UAWUTY y/N
ANY pROpRierofl'pARTNER/exEcuTivc rm
OFFICeFMt^EMSER EXCLU0607 1 " 1
(MAfN(«toryinNH) '
if d*sciib« und«f

OESCRiPTION OF OPERATIONS b«tew

N/A 01000011379-2025 07/01/2025 07/01/2026

JUO

JMLI

X

e.L. EACH ACCIDENT , 1.000,000

EL DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE, 1,000,000

EL DISEASE - POLICY UMIT , 1,000,000

C
Management Liability with Crime

PHSD1807749 07/01/2025 07/01/2026

Aggregate

Par Claim

Crime Aggregate

$8,000,000

$3,000,000

$1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS 1 LOCATIONS 1 VEHtCUS (ACORO tOt, AMSlMar RMUilu Schidula, may b* ituetwil IT man apace la re<Mnd)

Workers Comp 3A State: NH

state of New Hampshire OHHS Bureau of Contracts S Procurement

129 Pleasant St

Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POUCtES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

AUTHCmZEO RBTRESENTATIVB

ACORO 2S (2016/03)

01I8S-201S ACORD CORPORATION. All rights restrvsri.
The ACORO naitM and logo ara raglstarad marks of ACORD



NONPROFIT COVER SHEET

A. Entity Name: Community Action Partnership of Strafford County

B. Entity's Contact Information:

For Records Requests (e.g., resumes of key personnel; audited financial statements):

Name / Phone / Email: John Gagner, 603-435-2500, JGagner@StrafFordCAP.org

Person responsible for Accuracy and Completeness of information provided:
Name: Betsey Andrews Parker Title: CEO

Signature:

C. List Board of Directors and Affiliations

Name (Identify any additional role(s) in

Parentheses!

E.g., John Doe (President)

Affiliations

Terry Jaryis Town Of New Durham, Elected Official $

Katrin Kasper Town Of Lee, Elected Official

Sarah Kuhl ' ' . Banking Representatiye iji
Steye TrozinsKi Community Member Doyer, NH

Nate Bemitz ^ UNH Cooperatiye Extension

Heather Blumenfeld Triangle Club

Bekki Carlson Childcare

Anthony Carr Legal Representatiye

Leah Chrouser NHPD ' ^ ''im
Robert Harrington MGB/WDH

Jessica Lamontaghe Elected State Representatiye
Brandi McKay Berry Town of Barrington, Elected official

Ian Oneail . Banking Representatiye v

Roxanne Osgood Rochester Housing Authority

Rich Plourde Reyo Casino

James Rathbun Community Member Farmington, NH

Tom Southworth ' " Elected State Representatiye j ,

Mark Toussaint City of Rochester, Elected Official

Christi-Anne Walter ' ' Community Member

Jeff Warach City of Doyer, Elected Official
jCity of Doyer, Elected OfficialRdbert^Warach

D. List Key Personnel (Resumes must be available upon request to the person(s) listed in
section B or may be attached):

Name Role Annual Salary Amount Paid From

This Contract

Lauren Bermari-

LeFebvre

Community
Seryices Director

91,520 • ' ; 7,755 '



Christopher Greene Homeless Outreach 48,318 7,666
Christine Johnson Housing and 51,646

Supporting Services
Coordinator

Sarah Jones Homeless Outreach 55,494 34,690
Susan DanfortffWB fĵ Program Assistant* "41"725 3,301 ■>' I 1
Jayden Cruz Intern 37,440 6,120

DISCLOSURE OF LEGAL ACTIVITIES INVOLVING THE STATE OF NEW
HAMPSHIRE OR ANOTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITY

E. Check one of the following:

[X ] The entity is not currently or has not been party to any legal proceeding involving the
State of New Hampshire (or any agency or subdivision thereof) or any other state/federal
government entity before any adjudicative body in any jurisdiction OR

[ ] The entity is or has been party to one or more legal proceedings as set forth above.
Identify the jurisdiction, court or other adjudicative body, case number, and briefly
describe the nature of the proceeding (Attached extra sheet if necessary).

F.

[X]

[ ]

[ ]

CHARITABLE TRUSTS UNIT COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATION

Check one of the following:

is registered and in good standing with the New Hampshire Department of Justice
Charitable Trusts Unit (** see note below) or has submitted a complete application for
registration to the Charitable Trusts Unit and is awaiting a registration determination OR

is not required to register with the Charitable Trusts Unit because it is neither tax-exempt
under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code nor engages in charitable
solicitations in the State of New Hampshire OR

is exempt from registration with the Charitable Trusts Unit because it is a federal or state
government, agency, or subdivision or is a religious organization, an integrated auxiliary
of a religious organization, or is a convention or association of churches.

** Note: Attached screen shot from the DOJ Registered Charities List found at:

https://mm.nh.gov/files/uploads/doi/remote-docs/reaistered-charities.pdf
|a57 illH Uttiow of Strafforjl County |0382mi5O |s |VlS/2026



FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES

G. Check one the following:

[ X ] The organization hired an outside firm to audit its financial statements or to prepare
GAAP-compliant financial statements for its most recently completed fiscal year. If so,
please ensure that the financial statements and audit results are available to be requested
from the contact listed on Page 1 (audited financials may be attached) OR

[ ] The above does not apply, but the organization filed an IRS Form 990 or Form 990-EZ
for its most recently completed fiscal year. Please attach that IRS Form 990 or Form 990-
EZ to the submission. (Form 990 Schedule B is not required) OR

[ ] If neither of the above apply, complete the Income Statement and Balance Sheet below
with the following basic financial information from the organization's most recently
completed fiscal year:

1. INCOME STATEMENT

REVENUE EXPENSES

GRANTS

DONATIONS

PROGRAM

SERVICES

REVENUE

INTEREST &

DIVIDENDS

ALL OTHER

REVENUE

TOTAL REVENUE

COMPENSATION OF

OFFICERS, DIRECTORS,

AND KEY PERSONNEL

OTHER SAURIES &

WAGES

PAYROLL TAXES &

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

OCCUPANCY, RENT,

UTILITIES, AND

INSURANCE

PRINTING,

PUBLICATIONS,

POSTAGE, OFFICE

SUPPLIES, AND IT

ALL OTHER EXPENSES

TOTAL EXPENSES

/



2. BALANCE SHEET

Assets

Cash & Equivalents

Investments

Real Estate (less any
depreciation)

Other Property &
Equipment (less any
depreciation)

Pledges, grants,
accounts receivable

All other assets

Total Assets

Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Loans Payable

All other liabilities

Total Liabilities
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MISSION
To reduce barriers to help clients improve their

economic stability and well-being through education,

advocacy, and partnerships.

'community

Won
PARTNERSHIP

of Strafford County

VISION
To eliminate poverty.



Financial Statements

COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF

STRAFFORD COUNTY AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED

DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023
AND

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORTS AND REPORTS ON

COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Leone, .
McDonnell
& Roberts
PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATION

CERnPIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2024 AND 2023

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Independent Auditors' Report

Financial Statements:

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

Consolidated Statements of Activities

Consolidated Statements of Functional Expenses

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Consolidated Notes to Financial Statements

Supplementary Information:

Consolidating Statement of Financial Position

Consolidating Statement of Activities

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an
Audit of Financial Statements Performed In Accordance with

Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major
Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by
the Uniform Guidance

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Paqe(s)

1 -3

4

5-6

7-8

9

10-23

24

25

26-27

28

29-30

31 -33

34



Leone, ,
McDonnell
&Roberts

^ofcisional Amoq^qoti

QWriliWD FUBuc Acooxjfrrjii^
DOVER • SMDL7EB0&0

NORTH GC»fWAY

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County and Affiliate

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Community Action Partnership
of Strafford County (a New Hampshire nonprofit organization) and Affiliate, which comprise the
consolidated statements of financial position as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the related
consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended,
and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of the other auditors, the consolidated financial
statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Community Action
Partnership of Strafford County and Affiliate as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the changes in its
net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

We did not audit the financial statements of Academy Street Family Housing, LLC a wholly owned
subsidiary, for the year ended December 31, 2024, which statements reflect total assets constituting
7.87 percent of consolidated total assets at December 31, 2024, and total revenues constituting 0.36
percent of consolidated total revenues for the year then ended. Those statements were audited by
other auditors, whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the
amounts included for Academy Street Family Housing, LLC, is based solely on the report of the other
auditors.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Community Action
Partnership of Strafford County and Affiliate and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibiiities of Management for the Financiai Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.



In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there
are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Community
Action Partnership of Strafford County and Affiliate's ability to continue as a going concern within one
year after the date that the consolidated financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors'
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is
a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made
by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County and Affiliate's
internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about Community Action Partnership of Strafford County and
Affiliate's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.



Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
as a whole. The accompanying consolidating schedules and schedule of expenditures of federal
awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes
of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated July 23,
2025, on our consideration of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Partnership of Strafford
County's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Community Action
Partnership of Strafford County's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Dover, New Hampshire
July 23, 2025



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

DECEMBER 31. 2024 AND 2023

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Contributions receivable

Due from Gafney Home, L.P.
Inventory
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

NONCURRENT ASSETS

Restricted cash

Security deposits
Property, net of accumulated depreciation
Other noncurrent assets

Right of use asset

Total noncurrent assets

1,484,910

1,767,593

20,100

387,795

275,443
10,074

3,945,915

31,335

8,312

7,993,215

26,798
136,801

8,196,461

2023

1,806,373

1,875,336

20,000

519,890

413,604
11,972

4,647,175

36,215

8,375

6,374,340

25,503
81,312

6,525,745

TOTAL ASSETS $  12,142,376 $ 11,172,920

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of long term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related taxes
Accrued compensated absences
Refundable advances

Other current liabilities

Current portion of right of use liability

Total current liabilities

110,327

219,706

198,594

183,856

112,535

14,533
65,895

99,121

1,295,505

128,546

193,093

849,145

36,309
36,264

905,446 2,637,983

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term debt, less current portion shown above
Security deposits
Right of use liability, less current portion shown above

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

3,221,454

2,855

70,906

3,295,215

4,200,661

3,057,976

2,853

45,048

3,105,877

5,743,860

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

7,716,482
225,233

7,941,715

$  12,142,376

5,253,075
175,985

5,429,060

$  11,172,920

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2024

Without Donor With Donor

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant revenue

Fees for service

Rent revenue

Public support
In-kind donations

Interest

Fundraising
Other revenue

Restrictions

$  14,421,951

1,251,930

78,293

1,013,958

1,256,707

2,364

268,446

103,454

Restrictions

$

173,699

Total

$  14,421,951
1,251,930

78,293

1,187,657

1,256,707

2,364

268,446

103,454

Total revenues and other support 18,397,103 173,699 18,570,802

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS 124,451 (124,451)

Total revenues, other support, and net
assets released from restrictions 18,521,554 49,248 18,570,802

EXPENSES

Program services
Child services

Community services
Energy assistance
Housing
Weatherization

6,253,985

2,332,090

4,433,054

1,378,466

1,277,962

-

6,253,985

2,332,090

4,433,054

1,378,466

1,277,962

Total program services 15,675,557 - 15,675,557

Supporting activities
Management and general
Fundraising

1,365,044

270,146

- 1,365,044

270,146

Total expenses 17,310,747 17,310,747

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS BEFORE ACQUISITION

OF PROPERTY AND LAND 1,210,807 49,248 1,260,055

ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY AND LAND 1,252,600 1,252,600

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 2,463,407 49,248 2,512,655

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 5,253,075 175,985 5,429,060

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $  7,716,482 $  225,233 $  7,941,715

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2023

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant revenue

Fees for service

Rent revenue

Public support
In-kind donations

Interest

Fundraising

Other revenue

Gain on disposal of property

Total revenues and other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS

Without Donor

Restrictions

$ 16,787,565

3,030,181

65,397

329,618

767,224

1,089

227,539

31,951

(79.338)

21,161,226

161,314

With Donor

Restrictions

31,514

31,514

(161,314)

Total

$  16,787,565

3,030,181

65,397

361,132

767,224

1,089
227,539

31,951

(79,338)

21,192,740

Total revenues, other support, and net
assets released from restrictions

EXPENSES

Program services

Child services

Community services

Energy assistance
Housing
Weatherization

Total program services

Supporting activities
Management and general
Fundraising

Total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS BEFORE ACQUISITION

OF PROPERTY AND LAND

ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY AND LAND

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

21,322,540

5,618,514

1,213,031

4,088,771

5,475,141

3,309,103

19,704,560

1,522,812

197,469

21,424,841

(102,301)

720,514

618,213

4,634,862

(129,800)

(129,800)

(129,800)

305,785

21,192,740

5,618,514

1,213,031

4,088,771

5,475,141

3,309,103

19,704,560

1,522,812

197,469

21,424,841

(232,101)

720,514

488,413

4,940,647

$  5,253,075 $ 175,985 $ 5,429,060

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY AND AFPll lATF

CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2024

intermediate Management
Child Community Energy Total Progrmn (Allocation) and

Services Services Assistance Housino Weatherization Services Pools General Fundraisina

Payroll $  3,697,447 $  684,319 $  447,485 $  390,071 $ 267,529 $  5,486,851 S  11,228 $  806,083 $  102,552
Payroll taxes 293,717 54,558 34,778 30,969 20,477 434,499 996 75,100 8,357
Fringe benefits 272,943 33,249 46,289 27,168 29,217 408,866 128 60,106 4,711
Retirement 18,436 4,849 3,003 3,682 4,387 34,357 39 5,165 492
Weatherization material, fuel
and client assistance 67,912 19,631 3,811,179 631,357 860,732 5,390,811 _ _ .

In-kind expenses 303,168 896,130 - 43,936 500 1,243,734 _ _ 13,025
Consultants and contract labor 129,787 29,247 74 51,460 415 210,983 94,370 116,453 48,186
Consumable supplies 258,331 326,625 5,761 4,983 3,682 599.382 72,200 4,091 5,251
Occupancy 693,212 82,940 45,712 73,430 29,409 924,703 (510,137) 84.414 13,027
Repairs and maintenance 164,400 25,798 13,112 32,721 829 236,860 340,203 2,814 6,830
Insurance 24,124 33.089 999 10,889 554 69,655 15,169 55,005 372
Training and conferences 111,386 22,054 21 407 27,964 161,832 2.198 2,482 53,215
Depreciation 95,247 62,829 391 47,033 721 206.221 _ 87,398
Travel and transportation 30,651 19,745 212 22,722 8,096 81,426 (23,707) 11,578 1,216
Printing and postage 357 571 9,679 180 183 10,970 4,068 8,014
Equipment and computer 38,925 939 40 80 13,660 53,644 14,443 665
Interest expense 13,146 10,766 8,134 6,205 4,161 42.412 3,177 50,287 2,844
Other program suppcxt 40,796 24,751 6,185 1,173 5,446 78,351 (20,307) - 1.389

Total expenses $  6,253,985 $  2,332,090 $  4,433,054 $  1,378,466 $ 1,277,962 $  15,675,557 $ $  1,365,044 $  270,146

$  6,406.714
518,952
473,811
40.053

5.390,811
1.256,759

469,992
680,924

512,007
586,707

140,201

219,727

293,619

70,513
23,052

68,752

98,720

59.433

$  17,310,747

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFQRD COUNTY AND AFFIUATE

CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2023

Intermediate Management

Child Community Energy Total Program (/Ulocation) and

Services Services Assistance Housina Weatherlzation Services Pools General Fundraisina Total

Payroll $  3,562.846 $  276,618 $  503,425 $  628,100 $ 220,327 $  5,191,316 $  24,927 $  854,406 S 79,711 $  6,150,360
Payroll taxes 293,123 23,014 41,585 51,302 17,595 426,619 2.305 40,988 6,452 476,364

Fringe benefits 233,618 18,544 42,466 49,182 23,018 366,828 - 63,255 5,369 435,452

Retirement 16,331 1,769 2,362 5,463 1,837 27,762 274 4,914 291 33,241

Weatherlzation material, fiiel
and client assistance 29,635 32,082 3,413,724 4,394,593 2,977,588 10,847,622 - - - 10,847.622

In-kind expenses 167,453 565,933 - 19,827 500 753,713 - - 13,511 767,224

Consultants artd contract labor 58,298 6,383 151 41,791 336 106,959 77,946 167,622 19,414 371,941

Consumable supplies 223,160 154,240 5,563 39.621 4,738 427,322 51,654 18,436 4,875 502,287

Occupancy 700,964 46,498 55,377 130,160 21,160 954,159 (621.635) 84,260 11,291 428,075

Repairs ar>d maintenance 52,295 9.782 5,971 17.494 1,133 86,675 400,030 5,810 1,675 494,190

Insurance 33,359 3,256 1,325 8.559 955 47,454 15,170 56,416 185 119,225

Training arxS conferences 86,945 12,467 5,012 21,405 19,194 145.023 62 66,709 41.212 253,006

Depreciation 76,962 42,021 391 37,528 4,328 161,230 - 87,399 - 248,629

Travel and transportation 44,974 4,203 224 16,382 6,491 72,274 (12,307) 6,983 894 67,844

Printirtg and postage 1,074 3,098 2,051 60 19 6,302 - 6,091 10,295 22.688

Equipment and computer 6,952 728 - 2,525 6,628 16,833 16,357 3,458 60 36.708

Interest expense 17,629 6,819 9,144 11,149 3,256 47,997 2.834 42,163 1,280 94,274

Other program si4)port 12,896 5.576 - - - 18,472 42.383 13,902 954 75,711

Total expenses S  5,618,514 $  1,213.031 $  4.088,771 $  5.475.141 $ 3,309,103 S  19,704,560 $ $  1,522.812 $ 197,469 $  21,424,841

See Notes to Financial Statements
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CQMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORH COUNTY AND AFFII lATF

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2024 AND 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets
Adjustment to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Amortization of debt issuance costs

Acquisition of property and land
Acquisition of long term debt
Transfer of property to Gafney Home, L.P.
Loss (gain) on disposal of property

Decrease (increase) in assets:
Accounts receivable

Contributions receivable

Due from Gafney Home, L.P.
Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Other noncurrent assets

Security deposits
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related taxes
Accrued compensated absences
Refundable advances

Other current liabilities

Security deposits

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property
Proceeds on sale of property

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments made on long term debt

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, END OF YEAR

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH

Cash

Restricted cash:

Insurance escrow

Tax escrow

Replacement reserves
Operating reserve

Total cash and restricted cash

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid during the year for interest

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING AND
AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Acquired property and land

Acquired long term debt
See Notes to Financial Statements

2024 2023

$  2,512,655 $  488,413

293,619 248,629
3,376 3,376

(1,502,600) (945,514)
250,000 225,000

288 129,397
- 79,338

107,743 681,516

(100) 30,000

132,095 (519,890)
138,161 88,148

1,898 40,074
(1,295) -

63 52

(1,075,799) 849,547
70,048 (472)
(9,237) (12,435)

(736,610) (732,629)
(21,776) (37,153)

2 (348)

162,531 615,049

(410,182) (100,594)
- 19,023

(410,182)

(78,692)

(78,692)

(326,343)

1,842,588

$  1,516,245

(81,571)

(75,453)

(75,453)

458,025

1,384,563

$  1,842,588

$  1,484,910 $ 1,806,373

5,907

5,972

8,928

10,528

13,477

5,931

6,580
10,227

$  1,516,245 $ 1,842,588

98,720 $ 94,274

$  1,502,600 $ 945,514

$  250,000 $ 225,000



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2024 AND 2023

N0TE1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Organization and Principles of Consolidation

Community Action Partnership of Stratford County (the Agency) is a 501(c)(3)
private New Hampshire non-profit organization established under the provisions
of the Equal Opportunity Act of 1964. Without services provided by the Agency,
many local residents would be without a means to provide for their basic needs,
including food, education, child care, utilities assistance, transportation, housing,
emergency shelter and access to other services. The mission of the Agency is to
reduce barriers to help clients improve their economic stability and well-being
through education, advocacy, and partnerships. The vision of the Agency is to
eliminate poverty in Strafford County through compassion, education, self-
sufficiency, transparency, accountability, team work, client focus and
professionalism.

Academy Street Family Housing, LLC (Academy Street) is a limited liability
company which is consolidated with the Agency, as the Agency is the is the sole
member of Academy Street. All significant intercompany items and transactions
have been eliminated from the consolidated financial statements.

In addition to the Agency's administrative office located in Dover, the Agency
maintains its outreach capacity by operating program offices in Farmington,
Milton, Rochester, Dover and Somersworth. The Agency is funded by Federal,
state, county and local funds, as well as United Way, public utilities, foundation
and charitable grant funds, fees for service, private business donations, and
donations from individuals. The Agency is governed by a tripartite board of
directors made up of elected officials, community leaders from for-profit and non
profit organizations and residents who are low income. The board is responsible
for assuring that the Agency continues to assess and respond to the causes and
conditions of poverty in its community, achieve anticipated family and community
outcomes, and remain administratively and fiscally sound. The Agency
administers a wide range of coordinated programs to more than 15,000 people
annually, and the programs are designed to have a measurable impact on
poverty and health status among the most vulnerable residents: those under the
age of 6, the elderly and those living in poverty. This coordinated approach is
accomplished by providing a broad array of services that are locally defined,
planned and managed with community agencies.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFQRD COUNTY

AND AFFILIATE

t"

:V
\

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

,  ; FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2024 AND 2023

Basis of Accounting

■fl

;■ ^ The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the accrual
basis of accounting in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

1 V (GAAP) of the United States.

fl * ' ' Financial Statement Presentation
'•(. \ v - .."^be consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with

^  ..'l. U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require theAgency to' report information regarding its financial position and activities
?Xi-i ' .v; 'according to the following net asset classifications:

1 '.* / ' i.e.; -- . . ..f#' . .•  f • V ' ' r*' ^ ' t

-y Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to
yy ^ . donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in

■  \ ''' performing the primary objectives of the Agency. These net assets may be
used at the discretion of the Agency's management and board of
directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations
imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary
in nature: those restrictions will be met by actions of the Agency or by
passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby
the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with
donor restrictions. When restriction expires, net assets are reclassified
from net assets with donor restrictions to net assets without donor
restrictions in the statement of activities.

At December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Agency had net assets without donor and
with donor restrictions.

Refundable Advances
Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and
recognized as revenue in the period in which the related services are performed
or expenditures are incurred.

Contributions
All contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless
specifically restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are restricted by the
donor for future periods or for specific purposes are reported as net assets with
donor restrictions. However, if a restriction is fulfilled in the same period in which
the contribution is received, the Agency reports the support as unrestricted.

I  ,

.  ■

•  x i' %
■ i T

' ^ • :■
f
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2024 AND 2023 ■

Contributed Services

Donated services are recognized as contributions in accordance with FASB ASC
No. 958, Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made, if the
services (a) create or enhance non-financial assets or (b) require specialized
skills and would othenwise be purchased by the Agency.

Volunteers provided various services throughout the year that are not recognized
as contributions in the financial statements since the recognitior\ criteria under
FASB ASC No. 958 were not met.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Unless otherwise indicated, fair values of all reported assets and liabilities that
are financial instruments approximate the carrying values of such amounts.

Inventory
Inventory materials are fixtures for installation and recorded at cost or net
realizable value or if donated, at approximate fair value at date of donation, using
the first-in, first-out method.

Property and Depreciation

Property and equipment, which have a cost greater than $5,000, are capitalized
at cost or, if donated, at the approximate fair value at the date of donation.
Specific grants and awards may have a threshold lower than this amount and
that program will abide by those guidelines. Assets are depreciated over their
estimated useful lives using the straight-line method as follows:

-■ i.. ■ '■
. i

' J ■

Buildings and improvements
Furniture, equipment and machinery
Vehicles

15-40 years
3-10 years
5 - 7 years

Depreciation expense aggregated $293,619 and $248,629 for the years ended
December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Accrued Earned Time
The Agency has accrued a liability of $183,856 and $193,093 at December 31,
2024 and 2023, respectively, for future compensated leave time that its
employees have earned and which is vested with the employee.

. v-'-V

\ 1. y ^

SjkV •:> \ %



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2024 AND 2023

Income Taxes

The Agency is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code. The Internal Revenue Service has determined the Agency to be
other than a private foundation. The Agency is also exempt from the New
Hampshire Business Enterprise Tax.

Accounting Standard Codification No. 740, "Accounting for Income Taxes",
establishes the minimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for measuring,
the benefits of tax return positions in financial statements. Management has
analyzed the Agency's tax position taken on its information returns for the
previous three tax years and has concluded that no additional provision for
income taxes is necessary in the Agency's financial statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Agency considers all highly liquid financial instruments with original
maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents. For the years ended
December 31, 2024 and 2023 cash and cash equivalents totaled $1,484,910 and
$1,806,373, respectively.

Revenue Recognition Policv

The Agency derives revenue from grants, fees for services, donations, public
support, and fundraising. Revenues are recognized when control of these
services are transferred to customers, in an amount that reflects the
consideration the Agency expects to be entitled to in exchange for those
services. Cost incurred to obtain a contract will be expensed as incurred when
the amortization period is less than a year.

Academy Street derives revenue from the rental of apartment units. Revenues
are recognized as income, monthly, when rents become due and control of the
apartment units is transferred to the lessees. Control of the leased units is
transferred to the lessee in an exchange for the leased units. The cost incurred to
obtain a lease will be expensed as incurred.

Use of Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Advertising Expenses

The Agency expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Total advertising
costs for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 amounted to $15,342
and $10,426, respectively.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFQRD COUNTY

AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2024 AND 2023

Debt Issuance Costs

As required under FASB Accounting Standards Update No. 2015-03,
amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023
amounted to $3,376 and has been included with interest expense in the
consolidated statement of activities for each year. The unamortized deferred
financing costs have been included as a reduction of the long term debt (see
Note 10).

In-kind Donations

The Agency pays below-market rent for the use of certain facilities. In
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the difference
between amounts paid for the use of the facilities and the fair value of the rental
space has been recorded as an in-kind donation and as an in-kind expense in
the accompanying consolidated financial statements. The estimated fair value of
the donation was determined to be $170,732 and $103,356 for the years ended
December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

The Agency also receives contributed food commodities and other goods that are
required to be recorded in accordance with FASB ASC No. 958. The estimated
fair value of these food commodities and goods was determined to be $552,346
and $412,602, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2024. For the year
ended December 31, 2023, the estimated fair value of these food commodities
and goods was determined to be $457,049 and $116,368, respectively.

The Agency also receives contributed professional services and volunteer time
that are required to be recorded in accordance with FASB ASC No. 958. The
estimated fair value of these services was determined to be $121,027 for the
year ended December 31, 2024. The estimated fair value of these services was
determined to be $90,451 for the year ended December 31, 2023.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis. Accordingly, costs have been allocated among
the program services and supporting activities benefited. Occupancy costs have
been grouped and allocated to the programs as a line item. Such allocations have
been determined by management on an equitable basis.

The expenses that are allocated include the following;

Expense Method of allocation

Salaries and benefits Time and effort

Occupancy Square footage/revenues

Depreciation Square footage

All other expenses Approved indirect rate



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFQRD COUNTY

AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 2. PROPERTY

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, property consisted of the following:

2024 2023

Land, buildings and improvements $8,641,414 $ 6,900,857
Furniture, equipment and machinery 590,886 418,949
Vehicles 315.682 315.682

Total 9,547,982 7,635,488
Less accumulated depreciation 1.554.767 1.261.148

Net property $7,993,215 $ 6.374.340

NOTE S. RESTRICTED CASH BALANCES

Certain cash accounts have been established and are being funded in accordance
with a regulatory agreement entered into between Academy Street and New
Hampshire Housing as discussed below. All reserves are required to be held in
qualified New Hampshire financial institutions that are insured by the FDIC.

Operating Reserve

Under the regulatory agreement, Academy Street is required to establish an
operating reserve. The operating reserve was funded properly during the years
ended December 31, 2024 and 2023.

Replacement Reserve

Under the regulatory agreement, Academy Street is required to set aside amounts
for the replacement of property and other expenditures approved by New
Hampshire Housing. Additionally, Academy Street is required to make monthly
payments to the reserve. The reserve was properly funded during 2024 and 2023.

Insurance and Real Estate Tax Escrows

Academy Street is required to establish a reserve to fund tax and insurance
payments for the project. Amounts are to be deposited on a monthly basis to
accrue a sufficient balance to pay future tax and insurance bills for the project. As of
December 31, 2024 and 2023, the balance in the reserves for tax and insurance
escrows was properly funded.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 4. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The following represents the Agency's financial assets as of December 31:

Financial assets at year end:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Contributions receivable

Due from Gafney Home, IP.
Restricted cash

2024

$ 1,484,910
1,767,593

20,100
387,795
31.335

2023

$ 1,806,373
1,875,336

20,000
519,890

36.215

Total financial assets

Less amounts not available to be used

within one year:
Restricted cash

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months

3,691,733 4,257,814

31.335 36.215

$ 3.660.398 $ 4.221.599

The Agency's goal is generally to maintain financial assets to meet 30 days of
operating expenses. As part of its liquidity plan, excess cash is invested in short-
term investments, including money market accounts.

NOTE 5. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

All accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect
from balances outstanding at year-end. The Organization uses historical loss
information based on the aging of receivables as the basis to determine expected
credit losses from receivables and believes that the composition of receivables at
year-end is consistent with historical conditions as credit terms and practices and
the client base has not changed significantly.

The allowance for uncollectible accounts was estimated to be zero at December

31, 2024 and 2023. The Agency has no policy for charging interest on overdue
accounts.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFQRD COUNTY

AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 6. CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVABLE

Contributions receivable represent promises to give, which have been made by
donors but have not yet been received by the Agency. The Agency considers
contributions receivable to be fully collectible: accordingly, no allowance for
contributions receivable has been recorded.

Total unconditional promises to give were as follows at December 31:

2024 2023

Within one year $ 20.100 $ 20.000

NOTE 7. DUE FROM GAFNEY HOME. L.P.

Gafney Home, L.P. (Gafney) is a low-income housing tax credit property. The
general partner (0.01%) of Gafney is 100% owned by the Agency. The amount
included in due from Gafney Home, L.P. on the consolidated statement of
financial position represents amounts that the Agency has paid on behalf of
Gafney for the construction that is underway. For the years ended December 31,
2024 and 2023 the amount totaled $387,795 and $519,890, respectively.

NOTE 8. PLEDGED ASSETS

As described in Note 9, all assets of the Agency are pledged as collateral under
the Agency's demand note payable agreement. As described in Note 10, the
building of the Agency is pledged as collateral under the Agency's mortgage note
payable agreement.

NOTE 9. DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE

The Agency has available a revolving line of credit with a bank in the amount of
$750,000. The note is payable upon demand. Interest is stated at the prime rate
plus 1% which resulted in an interest rate of 8.50% at December 31, 2024 and
9.50% at December 31, 2023. The note is collateralized by all the assets of the
Agency. There was no outstanding balance on the demand note payable as of
December 31, 2024 and 2023.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFQRD COUNTY

AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 10. LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt at December 31, 2024 and 2023 consisted of the following:

2024 2023

Mortgage payable to Kennebunk Savings Bank
which had interest only payments for 36 months
followed by principal and interest payments for
264 months. During the year ended December 31,
2022 the note was refinanced to a fixed interest

rate of 4.25% for the first ten years resulting in
monthly principal and interest payments of
$11,170. On April 26, 2032, and on that date every
year thereafter, principal and interest payments
will adjust to 1.50% above the highest U.S Prime
Rate as published in the Wall Street Journal on
the applicable change date, with a floor rate of 4%.
The note matures in 2043. The mortgage payable
is secured by real estate. $ 1,731,559 $ 1,790,164

5.00% note payable to the New Hampshire
Community Loan Fund with monthly principal and
interest payments of $3,251, maturing October
2037. The notes are secured by real estate. 367,658 387,745

Note payable to New Hampshire Housing Finance
Authority. The note is not subject to interest or
principal amortization and will be forgiven in 2028
provided that the property is used for transitional
housing. The note is secured by real estate. 225,000 225,000

Note payable to the City of Dover. The note is not
subject to interest or principal amortization and will
be forgiven in 2029 provided that the property is
used for transitional housing. The note is secured
by real estate. 250,000

Non-interest bearing note payable to New
Hampshire Housing deferred until April 21, 2060
or until the project is sold, refinanced or surplus
cash is available. The note is secured by real
estate. 785,889 785,889
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFQRD COUNTY

AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2024 AND 2023

2024 2023

Non-interest bearing note payable to New
Hampshire Housing deferred until July 1, 2051 or
until the project is sold, refinanced or surplus cash
is available. The note is secured by real estate. 25.755 25.756

Total long term debt before current portion of long
term debt and unamortized debt issuance costs 3,385,861 3,214,554

Current portion of long term debt (110,327) (99,121)
Unamortized debt issuance costs (54.0801 (57.4571

Total long term debt S 3.221.454 $ 3.057.976

The schedule of maturities of long term debt at December 31, 2024 is as follows:

Year Ended

December 31 Amount

2025 $  110,327
2026 86,563
2027 90,488
2028 94,592
2029 573,883

Thereafter 2.430.008

Total $3,385,861

NOTE 11. NET ASSETS

At December 31, 2024 and 2023, net assets with donor restrictions consisted of
the following:

2024 2023

Whole family $ 38,194 $ 39,286
Delta dental 5,000
CCFG & ARPA quality incentive 54,623
Maternal health grant 19,430
Fuel assistance 107.986 136.699

Total $ 225.233 $ 175.985

During the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 $124,451 and $161,314
were released from net assets with donor restrictions, respectively.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFQRD COUNTY

AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 12. OPERATING LEASES

Facilities occupied by the Agency for its community service programs are rented
under the terms of various leases with expiration dates through 2032. For the
years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, the annual lease/rent expense for
the leased facilities was $69,901.

The Agency accounts for its operating leases under ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic
842). As such, the right of use (ROU) assets represent the Agency's right to use
underlying assets for the lease term, and the lease liabilities represent the
Agency's obligation to make lease payments arising from these leases. The ROU
assets and lease liabilities, all of which arise from operating leases, were
calculated based on the present value of future lease payments over the lease
terms. The discount rate related to the Agency's lease liability as of December
31, 2024 was 3.75%, which is based upon the risk-free borrowing rates
commensurate with the lease terms. At December 31, 2024, the ROU asset and

lease liability is $136,801. At December 31, 2023, the ROU asset and lease
liability is $81,312.

The weighted average lease term at December 31, 2024 is 3.47 years. The
weighted average discount rate at December 31, 2024 is 3.75%.

Common expenses, classified as occupancy costs in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements, are considered a non-lease component under
FASB ASC 842 and are recognized as costs as incurred.

Academy Street leases property from the Agency under a lease agreement for
an annual rent amount of $1. The lease expires during April 2045. Unless either
party serves the other with a 180 day written notice prior to the expiration of the
initial term, at the end of the initial term, the lease shall be automatically
extended for an additional 25 year term.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2024 AND 2023

Lease liability maturities as of December 31, 2024 is as follows:

Year Ending
December 31 Amount

2025

2026

2027

2028

2029

Thereafter

Total undiscounted lease liability
Less imputed interest

Total lease liability

69,901
38,401
6,901
6,901
6,901
17.244

146,249
(9.4481

$  136.801

NOTE 13. RETIREMENT PLAN

The Agency maintains a 403(b) Plan and Trust (the Plan) covering substantially
all employees. Employee contributions to the Plan are made at predetermined
rates elected by employees. Additionally, for the year ended December 31, 2024
the Agency provides a matching contribution equal to 100% of the employee's
contribution up to 2% of the employee's compensation. For the year ended
December 31, 2023 the Agency provides a matching contribution equal to 25% of
the employee's contribution up to 5% of the employee's compensation. Effective
April 1, 2016, the Agency instituted an auto enrollment feature mandating a
minimum 1% employee contribution; however, employees reserve the right to
decline the auto enrollment. Employer matching contributions for the years
ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 totaled $40,053 and $33,241, respectively.

NOTE 14. CONCENTRATION OF RISK

The Agency receives a majority of its support from federal and state
governments. For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, approximately
79% and 89%, respectively, of the Agency's total revenue was received from
federal and state governments. If a significant reduction in the level of support
were to occur, it would have a significant effect on the Agency's programs and
activities.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFQRD COUNTY

AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 15. CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Agency maintains its cash balances at several financial institutions in New
Hampshire. The balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation up to $250,000. The Agency maintains an agreement with its
primary financial institution to collateralize the balances in excess of $250,000.

NOTE 16. CONTINGENCIES

The Agency receives grant funding from various sources. Under the terms of
these agreements, the Agency is required to use the funds within a certain period
and for purposes specified by the governing laws and regulations. If expenditures
were found not to have been made in compliance with the laws and regulations,
the Agency might be required to repay the funds. No provisions have been made
for this contingency because specific amounts, if any, have not been determined
or assessed as of December 31, 2024 and 2023.

NOTE 17. RENTAL INCOME RECEIVABLE

During the year ended December 31, 2024, and subsequent to year end.
Academy Street entered into four separate rental agreements for use of their four
apartments. The rental agreements have differing expirations ranging from April
2024 through July 2025. Monthly payments for the agreements ranged from
$1,168 to $1,394 and are due the first day of each month. At December 31, 2024
and 2023, $3,447 and $2,587, respectively, is outstanding from tenants for rent
and is included in accounts receivable in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial position.

The approximate future rental payments owed on the above leases are as
follows:

Year Ended

December 31

2025

Amount

$  25.526
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 18. ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY AND LAND

During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Agency acquired property and land
relating to the Home for Now Homeless Shelter from another nonprofit organization.
The value of the building and land received in the acquisition totaled $386,507 and
$1,116,093, respectively. During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Agency
acquired property and land relating to a transitional housing program from another
nonprofit organization. The value of the building and land received in the acquisition
totaled $675,570 and $269,944, respectively.

As part of the acquisition of the property and land during the year ended December
31, 2024, the Agency also acquired the related note payable of $250,000, payable
to the City of Dover (see Note 10). The Agency has been running the operations of
the Home for Now program since the acquisition.

As part of the acquisition of the property and land during the year ended December
31, 2023, the Agency also acquired the related note payable of $225,000, payable
to New Hampshire Housing Rnance Authority (see Note 10). The Agency has
been running the operations of the transitional housing program since the
acquisition.

NOTE 19. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date,
including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements.
Nonrecognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date but arose
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through July 23,
2025, the date the consolidated financial statements were available for issuance.

Subsequent to year end, the Agency became entitled to $1,000,000 from HUD.
This amount is related to the support needed to complete the project at the
Bradley Commons Innovative Center. This support will assist in paying down the
mortgage, create 42 workforce housing units, provide capacity to serve nearly
5,000 additional community members in need, and consolidate the offices
occupied by the Agency.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

DECEMBER 31. 2024

Community
Action

Partnership
of Stratford

County

Academy
Street Family
Housing. LLC

ASSETS

Total

Consolidating
Adjustments Consolidated

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,382,497 $ 102,413 $ 1,484,910 $ - $ 1,484,910

Accounts receivable 1,764,146 3,447 1,767,593 - 1,767,593
Contributions receivable 20,100 - 20,100 - 20,100

Due from affiliate 9,249 - 9,249 (9,249) -

Due from Gafney Home, L.P. 387,795 - 387,795 - 387,795
inventory 275,443 - 275,443 - 275,443

Prepaid expenses 10,074 - 10,074 - 10,074

Total current assets 3,849,304 105,860 3,955,164 (9,249) 3,945,915

NONCURRENT ASSETS

Restricted cash - 31,335 31,335 - 31,335
Security deposits 5,107 3,205 8,312 - 8,312
Property, net of accumulated depreciation 7,178,184 815,031 7,993,215 - 7,993,215
Other noncurrent assets 26,798 - 26,798 - 26,798
Right of use asset 136,801 - 136,801 - 136,801

Total noncurrent assets 7,346,890 849,571 8,196,461 _ 8,196,461

TOTAL ASSETS $ 11,196,194 $ 955,431 $ 12,151,625 $ (9,249) $ 12,142,376

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of long term debt $ 82,809 $ 27,518 $ 110,327 $ - $ 110,327
Accounts payable 214,239 5,467 219,706 - 219,706

Accrued payroll and related taxes 198,594 - 198,594 - 198,594

Accrued compensated absences 183,856 - 183,856 - 183,856
Due to affiliate - 9,249 9,249 (9,249) -

Refundable advances 112,535 - 112,535 - 112,535
Other current liabilities 9,974 4,559 14,533 - 14,533

Current portion of right of use liability 65,895 - 65,895 - 65,895

Total current liabilities 867,902 46,793 914,695 (9.249) 905,446

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term debt, less current portion
shown above 2,451,161 770,293 3,221,454 - 3,221,454

Security deposits - 2,855 2,855 - 2,855

Right of use liability, less current portion
shown above 70,906 - 70,906 - 70,906

Total noncurrent liabilities 2,522,067. 773,148 3,295,215 . 3,295,215

Total liabilities 3,389,969 819,941 4,209,910 (9.249) 4,200,661

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions 7,580,992 135,490 7,716,482 - 7,716,482

With donor restrictions 225,233 - 225,233 - 225,233

Total net assets 7,806,225 135,490 7,941,715 7,941,715

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 11,196,194 $ 955,431 $ 12,151,625 $ (9,249) $ 12,142,376

See Independent Auditors' Report
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2024

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant revenue

Fees for service

Rent revenue

Public support
In-kind donations

Interest

Fundraising
Other revenue

Total revenues and other support

EXPENSES

Program services
Child services

Community services
Energy assistance
Housing
Weatherization

Total program services

Supporting activities
Management and general
Fundraising

Total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS BEFORE ACQUISITION

OF PROPERTY AND LAND

ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY AND LAND

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Community
Action

Partnership
of Strafford

Countv

Academy

Street Family
Housing. LLC Consolidated

$  14,421,951 $ $ 14,421,951

1,251,930 - 1,251,930
12,523 65,770 78,293

1,187,657 - 1,187,657

1,256,707 - 1,256,707
1,540 824 2,364

268,446 - 268,446
103,454 - 103,454

18,504,208 66,594 18,570,802

6,253,985 6,253,985

2,332,090 - 2,332,090

4,433,054 - 4,433,054
1,312,979 65,487 1,378,466
1,277,962 - 1,277,962

15,610,070 65,487 15,675,557

1,365,044 . 1,365,044

270,146 - 270,146

17,245,260 65,487 17,310,747

1,258,948 1,107 1,260,055

1,252,600 _ 1,252,600

2,511,548 1,107 2,512,655

5,294,677 134,383 5,429,060

$  7,806,225 $  135,490 $  7,941,715

See Independent Auditors' Report
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COMMUNITY ACTlOfI PARTMERSHtP OF STRAFFQRD COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND NON^EDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2024

ASSISTANCE

FEDERAL GRANTOR/

PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/PROGRAM TITLE

USTING

NUMBER

PASS-THROUGH

GRANTOR S HfiMC GRANTOR'S NUMBER

FEDERAL

EXPENDITURES

U.S. Deoartment of AaricuHure

ChHd and Adult Care Food Program 10.558 State of New Hampshire Department of Education 4300-ZZZ % 166,261

ChUd Nutrition Cluster

Summer Food SerNnce Program for ChMren
National School Lunch Program

10.559

10.555

State of New Hampshire Department of Education

State of New Hampshire Department of Education

4300.ZZZ

At-Risk After School Care Centers

$ 93,713
16,974 110,687

Food Distribution Cluster

Emergency Food Assistance Program
Emergency Food Assistance Program (Food Commodities)

10.569

10.569

Belknap-Men1mad( Community Action Partnership
Belknap-Menimack Community Action Partnership

None

None

4,146

550,771 554.917

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture $ 831,865

U.S. Deoartment of Housino and Urban Develooment

Supportive hlousing for the Elderly 14.157 Dover Housirrg Authority Dover Housirtg Authority % 33,004

CDBG Entitlement Grants Cluster

Community Development Sock Grants / Entitlerrrent Grants

Community Development Block Grants / Entitlement Grants
14.218

14.218

City of Dover, New Hampshire

City of Rochester. New Hampshire
City of Dover

City of Rochester
$ 29,849

87,497 117,346

Emerger>cy Solutions Grant Program 14.231 State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 05-95-42-423010-7927 88,400

Economic Development Initiative, Community Pro)ect Funding & Misc Grants 14.251 B-23-CP-NH-09S9 326,196

Continuum of Care

Corttinuum of Care

Continuum of Care

14.267

14.267

14.267

State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

State of New Hampshire Departmertt of Health and Human Services

SS-2G20-6HS-04PERNA-11

COC DV

COC RRH

29,286

210.676

177.595 417,557

Supportive Housing Program 14.235 State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 010-092-7176-102-0415 39.178

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development S 1,023,681

U.S Deoartment of Homeland Securitv

Emergency Food and Shelter National Program 97.024 United Way
593800-035 $ 5.779

Total U.S. Department of hlomeland Security S 5,779

U.S. Deoartment of Enerov

6IL - Weatherization Assistance for Low-Income Persons

Weatherization Assistance for Low-Income Persons

81.042

61.042

State of New Hampshire Govemor's Office of Energy & Community Services
State of New Hampshire Govemor's OfTice of Energy & Community Services

02-52-52-520010.XXXXOOOO-074-50

01-02-02-024010-7706-074-500587

S 253,296

140,992 $ 394,288

Total U.S. Department of Energy $ 394,288

8«« Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND NON-FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2024

FEDERAL GRANTOR/

PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/PROGRAM TITLE

U.S. Department of Health S Human Services

Aging Cluster
Special Programs for the Aging - Title Hi. Part B
Special Programs for the Aging - Title III, Part B

Matemal, Infant. Earfy Childhood
Homevisiting Program

Foster Care • Title IV • E

Promoting Safe and Stable Families

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families

Low-Income Home Energy Assistance
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance

Low-Income Water Assistance Program

Community Services Block Grant
Community Services Block Grant

CCDF Cluster

ARPA - ChHd Care and Development Block Grant

Head Start Cluster

Head Start

ASSISTANCE

USTING

NUMBER

93.044

93.044

93.870

93.658

93.556

93.558

93.568

93.568

93.569

93.569

93.575

93.600

PASS-THROUGH

GRANTOR S NAME

State of New Hampsftire Department of Health and Human Services. NTS
State of New Hampshire Division of EMerty and Aduh Services

State of New Hampshire Department of HeaRh and Human Services. DPH.
BPHCS, Matemal & Health Section

State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services, DPH.
BPHCS, Matemal & Health Section

State of New Hampshire. DHHS, Division for Children, Youth and Families

State of New Hampshire, DHHS. Division for Children. Youth and Families

State of New Hampshire Goverrrar's Office of Energy & Planning
State of New Hampshire Governor's Office of Energy & Planning

State of New Hampshire Governor's Office of Ertergy & Plannirtg

State of New Hampshire. DHHS, DFA

Southern NH Services

State of New Hampshire, DHHS

Direct Funding

GRANTOR'S NUMBER

05-9&-48-48010-78720000-S12-500352
010-048-7872-512-C352

05-95-90-902010-5896

05-95-90-902010-5897

05-095-042-421010-29730000-102-500734-42107306

05-095-045-450010-61460000-502-500891 -42106603

01-02-02-024010-77050000-074-500587

01-02-02-024010-77050000-074-500587

02-52-52-52010-19880000-500587

010-045-7148-093-0415

RPIC

177200 & H79TI084759

01CH01149602 & 603

FEDERAL

EXPENDITURES

%  35,955

5,948

$ 4,061,976

345,658

501,467

10.000

41,903

161,940

124.607

3,052

205,904

4.407.634

103.374

511,467

329,909

4,496,495

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration
Community-Based Child Abuse Prevention Grants
Activities to Support STLT Health Oept Response to Public Health or Healthcve Crises

Social Services Research and Demonstration

Matemal and Child Health Services Block Grant to States

Stephanie Tubbs Jones Child Welfare Program
Social Services Block Grant

Total U.S. Department of HeaRh & hfuman Services

TOTAL

93.243

93.590

93.391

93.647

93.994

93.645

93.667

Hope on Haven HiH
NH Childrens Trust

NH Childrens Trust

State of New Hampshire. DHHS. Division for Children, Youth and Families
State of New Hampshire, DHHS, Division for Children, Youth and Families
State of New Hampshire, DHHS, Division for Children. Youth and Families

H79TI084759

Trestle Impletementation & Concrete Supports

90EDA0017

05-095-090-51900000-102-500731-90004009
054)95-042-421010-29680000-102-500734-42106802

05-095-042-421010-29660000-102-500734-42106603

35,825
6,523
24,399

329,758

7,306

1,287

60,209

$ 10.851.592

$ 13.107.205

NON-FEDERAL AWARDS

Electrical Assistance Pro^am NH Pubfic Utilties Company

See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2024

N0TE1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule)
includes the federal award activity of Community Action Partnership of Strafford
County under programs of the federal government for the year ended December
31, 2024, The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a
selected portion of the operations of Community Action Partnership of Strafford
County, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes
in net assets, or cash flows of the Agency.

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

NOTE 3. INDIRECT COST RATE

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County has elected not to use the ten
percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 4. FOOD DONATION

Nonmonetary assistance is reported in the Schedule at the fair value of the
commodities received and disbursed.

NOTE 5. SUBRECIPIENTS

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County had no subrecipients for the
year ended December 31, 2024.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated
financial statements of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County (a New Hampshire
nonprofit organization) and Affiliate, which comprise the consolidated statements of financial
position as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the related consolidated statements of
activities, functional expenses, and cash flows, and the related notes to the consolidated
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated July 23, 2025.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's internal control over financial reporting
(internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Partnership of
Strafford County's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not
identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Community Action Partnership of
Strafford County's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

Dover, New Hampshire
July 23, 2025
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR

EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's compliance with the
types of compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Community Action
Partnership of Strafford County's major federal programs for the year ended December 31,
2024. Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs.

In our opinion, Community Action Partnership of Strafford County complied, in all material
respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31,
2024.

Basis for Opinion on Each Maior Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform
Guidance are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
section of our report.
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We are required to be independent of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County and
to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements
relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufHcient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program.
Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Community Action Partnership of Strafford
County's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant
agreements applicable to Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's federal
programs.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with
the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and
express an opinion on Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's compliance based
on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will
always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material
noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's compliance with the requirements of each
major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Government
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding Community Action Partnership of
Strafford County's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

Obtain an understanding of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's internal
control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Partnership of
Strafford County's internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.
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We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over ComDilance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material w/eakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed
to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were
not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Dover, New Hampshire
July 23, 2025
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2024

A. SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the consolidated
financial statements of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County and Affiliate
were prepared in accordance with GAAP.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the consolidated financial statements
is reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No
material weaknesses are reported.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Community
Action Partnership of Strafford County, which would be required to be reported in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program
and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No
material weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Community
Action Partnership of Strafford County expresses an unmodified opinion on all major
federal programs.

6. There were no audit findings that would be required to be reported in accordance with 2
CFR section 200.516(a).

7. The programs tested as major were: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services,
Head Start, ALN 93.600 and Social Services Research and Demonstration, ALN
93.647, NON-FEDERAL, NH Public Utilities Corporation, Electrical Assistance Program.

8. The threshold used for distinguishing between Type A and B programs was $750,000.

9. Community Action Partnership of Strafford County was determined to be a low-risk
auditee.

B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

0. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS
AUDIT

None
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Lauren Berman-Lefebvre

[Contact Information Redacted]

Professional Experience

Director of Community Services

Community Action Partnership ofStrafford County — 2024-Present

• Manage over 211 programs including outreach, housing and homelessness initiatives
(federal and state-funded), food pantries, senior services, and transportation.

•  Prepare and develop annual program budgets.
• Write grant proposals for new and ongoing programs.
•  Hire, train, and supervise a 21-person staff.

•  Align program goals with organizational strategic objectives, including expanding
homeless services in Strafford County.

•  Perform data clean-up activities to ensure accurate program records.
• Maintain state and federal compliance across all managed programs.
• Work closely with Bureau of Housing support
•  Oversee budget management and maintain partnerships with external agencies.

Director of Coordinated Entry and Family Shelters
Families in Transition, Manchester, NH — 2021-2024

•  Designed and implemented policies for new and existing shelter access points aligned
with the Housing First model.

• Managed two 24/7 family shelters (capacity: 18 families).
•  Led trauma-informed, harm-reduction-based case management.
•  Oversaw the equitable development of the Coordinated Entry (CE) system.
•  Ensured compliance with standards across 240 housing units.
•  Directed waitlist and housing intake processes using HMIS tools.
•  Evaluated program performance using ongoing data analysis.

Director of Family Shelters and Supportive Services

Families in Transition — 2020-2021

•  Supervised 8 case managers providing services across 250 supportive housing
programs.

• Managed two family shelters (Manchester and Wolfeboro).
•  Hired and managed a team of 22 supportive service staff.
•  Led crisis intervention, de-escalation, and psychoeducation efforts.
•  Reported on outcomes and compliance metrics.

•  Represented the organization in local strategic planning groups.



Director of Programs

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County — 2018-2021

• Managed 20+ programs in housing, fuel/electric assistance, senior services, and

transportation.

•  Oversaw $8 million in program budgets.

• Authored grant proposals for expansion and innovation.

•  Expanded homeless services including a new drop-in center and winter shelter.

•  Supervised a 20-person staff team.

Housing Stability Manager

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County — 2015-2018

•  Provided case management using the Housing First model.

• Assisted clients in identifying housing barriers and developing plans.

•  Coordinated with local mental health professionals, shelters, and law enforcement.

•  Regularly assessed client progress and needs.

•  Proposed programmatic improvements.

Welfare Officer

City of Somersworth, NH — 2010-2015

• Administered the City's general assistance program in compliance with RSA:165.

•  Updated City Assistance Guidelines in 2015.

• Worked with applicants to determine eligibility and made referrals as needed.

•  Coordinated with local service agencies to avoid duplication of services.

Founder and Partner

Good Works Entployment Services, York County — 2004-2010

•  Co-founded a workforce development agency serving clients referred by Vocational

Rehabilitation, DHHS, schools, and private insurers.

•  Supported clients in employment, education, housing, and volunteerism.

Education & Training

• Alumni, Leadership New Hampshire — 2019-2020

• Alumni, Leadership Seacoast — 2017-2018

•  B.S., Therapeutic Recreation — Ithaca College, 1999

• MOAB Trainer — 2022

•  Board member New Hampshire to End Homeless Coalition-2025



Chris Greene

[Contact Information redacted]

Professional Summary

1 am a compassionate and kind human being with a passion for helping people with

addiction and mentalhealth issues. I have over 80 hours of behavior health training

certificates. I currently working towardsgetting my CRSW. I am currently majoring in

psychology with a focus on addiction at SNHU with plans toget a masters in social work

and LADC. I am looking for a career that aligns with my beliefs and goals.

Authorized to work in the US for any employer

Work Experience

Homeless Outreach Coordinator

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County-Dover, NH

October 2025 to November 2025

Work as part of a team identifying and providing services to individuals and families who

are unshelteredhomeless through direct street outreach activities and through

reports/referrals from shelters, police,churches, town welfare officers, human service

providers and others. Needs to be self-motivated, a quickstudy, able to work with little

supervision, good time manager, good with detail work and able to relateto a wide variety of

clients and community resource people.

Peer support specialist

SOS recovery-Dover, DE

January 2025 to October 2025

1 .• Provide recovery support services with statewide participants in the SOS Peer-Strength

criminal justicerecovery programs and services.* Engage compassionately and

enthusiastically with participants who are involved in our Peer-Strengthprogram and in our

recovery centers.* Take part in statewide outreach to community stakeholders to increase

engagement from referralsources and build relationships with treatment courts, public

defenders, probation and parole officers,law enforcement, community corrections, and

state and county correctional facilities.* Provide participants with referrals and meaningful

connections to resources that improve their wellnessand recovery capital.* Take the lead



on all crises within our centers with the support of a supervisor and/or manager* Maintain a

safe and trauma informed space within our recovery centers that is orderly and centers

theexperiences of our community, participants, and volunteers.* Input all engagements

with participants accurately and accordingly in Recovery Link and in real time.* Obtain

Participant Outcomes and Recovery Capital Assessments at every participant engagement

(orwhen possible).* Report in a timely and punctual manner to appropriately support our

participants and be prepared andavailable both physically and emotionally to serve

participants at the start of all scheduled shifts.* Engage compassionately, enthusiastically

and with empathy with the community, volunteers, andall participants in and outside our

recovery centers, at events, during training, and with communitystakeholders.

* Provide a supportive environment that welcomes and encourages a culture of diversity,

equity,inclusion, and justice for those marginalized, especially the LGBTQIA+ community

and Black, lndigenous,and people of color.* Provide members with harm reduction

materials such as sterile syringes, safer smoking supplies, woundcare who are seeking

safe supplies and overdose prevention materials.* Check email daily, maintain

communication on internal staff communications platforms (i.e.. Slack).* Connect and

encourage participants to resources while honoring their self-directed goals.* Support

participants with their wellness and recovery.* Host and/or moderate chat in our digital

meetings and document the meetings and attendanceaccordingly.

Behavioral Health Technician

Amatus Health-Dover, NH

April 2023 to August 2025

* In charge of administrative duties such as admissions and discharges including aftercare,

medicationlogging, ensuring adherence to all program standards, filing all paperwork

turned in by and for eachresident, keeping track of important data on spreadsheets using

excel, writing incident reports for allinfractions. Ordering and stocking supplies, and writing

weekly reports.* Transportation of new clients to and from their home, detox,

appointments* Group facilitator for all different addiction and psychoeducational classes.*

Hands on supervision, doing drug tests, answering questions, making connections,

redirecting,motivational interviewing.

Sober Living Manager

South Eastern New Hampshire Services-Dover, NH

September 2023 to May 2025



* Wrote and implemented a new resident hand book with clear guidelines** • Started 2

weekly addiction study and discussion groups* * Used peer support to garner buy in as well

as significantly increased morale and comradery.* Responsible for being a peer leader. I

live in the house and maintain a positive environment and actas, a mediator, a sounding

board, helper, good influence.

CEO/Owner

Greene Paint LLC-Nashua, NH

April 2017 to February 2022

I started working small odd jobs in my spare time and eventually got an LLC and grew my

business towhere I could do it full time. I ran a 6 man painting crew.

Education

GED

Nashua High School North-Nashua, NH

September 2000 to June 2004

High school diploma or GED

Skills

^ Mental & Behavioral Health

•  Trauma-informed care, relapse prevention, harm reduction, motivational

interviewing

•  Strengths-based and client-centered treatment planning

•  Individual and group counseling, 12-step facilitation

•  Group therapy facilitation: cognitive behavioral, psychoeducational, grief and loss,

skills-building, process groups

t Medical & Clinical Skills

•  Medication-assisted treatment, medication administration

•  Vital signs monitoring, patient care, observation, and progress tracking

•  CPR, first aid, medical terminology, hospital experience

^ Social Services & Case Work



Case management, discharge planning, housing advocacy

Support for individuals experiencing homelessness, disabilities, developmental

disorders, and autism

Patient advocacy, social work, working with families and adults

Administrative & Technical Skills

Data entry, Microsoft Office (Word, Access), productivity software

Computer literacy and operation

Time management, organizational skills, attention to detail

Assessment Tools

Addiction Severity Index (AS!)

Alcohol Use Disorders Identification Test (AUDIT)

Drug Abuse Screening Test (DAST)

i  Interpersonal & Leadership Skills

Communication, interpersonal skills, conflict management

Mentoring, supervision, crisis management

Other Experience

Caregiving, live-in employment, military service

Customer service, working with hand tools, heavy lifting

Certifications and Licenses

Driver's License

Hippa

February 2027

CPR Certification

First Aid Certification

Additional Information



• Army National Guard Medic Training 91W 2004-2005* Paramedic License 2004-2009*

Aed Certified 2005* First Respcnder training 2005* Cpr Training 2005* Serv Safe certified

Including Updated Ccvid health inspection training. 2021



Christine e. Johnson

OBJECTIVE

Housing and Supportive Services Coordinator, Community Action Partnership of Strafford
County (CAPSC)

QUALIFICATIONS SUMMARY
Outreach worker and housing advocate with extensive knowledge of available resources and the
human service network and delivery systems in southern Maine and New Hampshire. Over twenty
years' experience providing client-centered coaching and case management services, in-person
and remotely, to a diverse population of individuals and families in the community.

SKILLS

• Active listening and motivational interviewing
•  Critical thinking and complex problem-solving
•  Effective written and verbal communication

• Record-keeping and report-making; data entry, management and analysis
• Ability to establish and maintain positive working relationships with members of a

comprehensive provider/resource network (communicate, collaborate, negotiate)
• Ability to work collaboratively with colleagues as well as proactively and independently
• Ability to manage, prioritize and complete multiple tasks under tight deadlines
•  Crisis management and conflict resolution
•  Cultural competency and desire to engage with people from different backgrounds
• Ability to develop trusting relationships with people served

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY

York County Community Action Corporation, 6 Spruce Street, P.O. Box 72, Sanford, ME.
March 2023 to July 2023. Homeowner Assistance Fund Program Specialist (Remote Position).
Carter Friend, Executive Director; Meaghan Arzberger, Director, Department of Economic
Opportunity, Supervisor. Federally-flmded, non-profit, anti-poverty organization. Grant-funded
position providing direct economic assistance to eligible York County, Maine homeowners
impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic. Clients served via telephone, text, email and direct mail.

York County Community Action Corporation, 6 Spruce Street, P.O. Box 72, Sanford, ME.
August 2021 to March 2023. Housing Stability Services Worker (Remote Position). Carter
Friend, Executive Director; Jackie Watson, Director of Energy Services; Heidi Jackson, Assistant
Director of Energy Services and Courtney Grugnale, Lead Housing Stability Services Worker,
Supervisors. Federally-funded, non-profit, anti-poverty organization. Two-year, grant-funded
position providing direct economic assistance to non-homeowner, eligible Maine households
during the COVID-19 pandemic. Delivery of short-term case management and information and
referral services via telephone, text, email and direct mail to York County, ME individuals and
families, referred by the Emergency Rental Assistance Program, who face housing instability,
possible eviction and homelessness.
• Connect at-risk households with Emergency Rental Assistance funding and other sources

of potential financial assistance needed to resolve the immediate housing crises.
I



Christine E. Johnson

•  Provide services to individuals and families facing housing instability, eviction and
homelessness in the following areas: housing navigation, short-term case management,
community outreach, referral to legal services and landlord engagement.

•  Stabilize current housing or locate other emergency or permanent rental housing. Obtain
leases, landlord agreements, housing authority contracts or motel invoices and submit
clients' requests for Emergency Rental Assistance funding for payment of their rent.

•  Collaborate, consult and advocate for clients with other social services providers, state and
municipal offices, ethnic and cultural organizations, housing access programs, agencies
providing case management services, local housing authorities, property managers and
landlords, legal aid organizations and motel owners.

• Develop individual housing stability plans with each household, establishing reasonable
goals and strategies for obtaining greater housing stability.

•  Build on client and vendor relationships already established to assist landlords or motel
management and clients in resolving conflicts that may occur prior to possible eviction
proceedings.

Professional skills developed: communication/listening skills; critical thinking and problem-
solving skills; collaboration and consulting skills; team-building skills; decision-making and
action-planning skills; crisis management and conflict resolution skills; home office management
and time-management skills; proficieney with office equipment and technology; report and record-
keeping; managing large datasets and creating reports with spreadsheets; database skills.

York County Community Action Corporation, 6 Spruce Street, P.O. Box 72, Sanford, ME.
March 2003 to August 2021. Community Outreach Worker (Remote Position from 2020-
2021). Barbara Crider, Executive Director; Meaghan Arzberger, Director, Department of
Economic Opportunity, Supervisor. Federally-funded, non-profit, anti-poverty organization. Co-
management of the Kittery, ME satellite office and delivery of case management and information
and referral services to individuals and families in southern York County, ME, from 2003 to 2015.
Management of the Biddeford, ME satellite Outreach office and delivery of case management and
information and referral services to individuals and families in northern York County, ME from
2015 to 2021. Services targeted to low-income households and provided via phone or in person
during office or home visits, or through street outreach activities, as needed.
•  Connect low-income households with community resources needed to resolve immediate

crises, as well as with those which promote long-term financial and household stability.
•  Provide information and referral services; deliver direct emergency assistance with basic

needs such as shelter, food, utilities, heat, medication or transportation, when funding is
available.

• Advocate for clients with municipal and state offices, other service providers and agencies,
local organizations and businesses; assist clients to develop the skills and expertise to
advocate on their own behalf.

•  Provide short-term and on-going case management of selected families and individuals;
develop, coordinate and monitor network of services and resources customized to the needs
and interests of each client.

• Conduct whole-family assessments; develop individualized care plans with clients
identifying desired outcomes, and the goals, strategies and resources used to achieve them.

•  Provide intake or referral services for all programs administered by the Agency, as
appropriate.

•  Supervise volunteers.



Christine E. Johnson

•  Establish/maintain working relationships with local, municipal offices; develop and
maintain provider/resource network.

• Assess opportunities for partnerships in addressing poverty-related issues and participate
in community initiatives, as appropriate.

•  Collect data and complete quarterly program reports.
Key Accomplishments
• Developed and maintained comprehensive provider/resource directory
•  Collaborated with Immigrant Legal Advocacy Project attorneys, Barbara Taylor and Philip

Mantis, from 2018-2020, to provide legal assistance for YCCAC clients facing
immigration status issues in the Biddeford area. Worked with fluent speakers to translate
Agency documents into languages commonly used by the immigrant and refugee families
we serve.

•  Collaborated with staff attorneys at Pine Tree Legal Assistance from 2015-2021 to provide
legal assistance for YCCAC clients facing eviction in York County.

•  Collaborated with others in 2016 to form the Biddeford Homeless Initiative Task force, a
community coalition of service providers, municipal employees, state and local politicians,
community members and other stakeholders. Received municipal and grant funding to
open an overnight warming center at Seeds of Hope (SOH) in Biddeford in 2017.

•  Collaborated with others In 2007 to establish Fuel & More, a community initiative in
Kittery, ME, bringing it to tax-exempt, non-profit, organizational status in 2014. Fuel &
More provides cordwood, electric heat and fuel fill-ups to Kittery families who do not
qualify for town assistance or whose incomes exceed the federal HEAP program
guidelines.

Professional skills developed: communication/listening skills; critical thinking and problem-
solving skills; collaboration and consulting skills; decision-making and action-planning skills;
crisis management and conflict resolution skills; office management; proficiency with office
equipment and technology; home office management and time-management skills; database input;
report and record keeping; program development; fundraising; event-planning.

Southern New Hampshire Services (formerly, Rockingham Community Action), 55 Prescott
Road, Raymond, NH. 2001 to 2003. Housing Resources Referral Specialist for the Housing
Referral Network Program. Stephen Geller, Executive Director; Amy Mueller-Campbell,
Director of Outreach Services, Supervisor. Three-year positon funded by a grant from New
Hampshire Housing Finance Authority. Delivery of housing counseling and referral services to
families in Rockingham County, NH.
• Advise clients regarding availability of housing and housing assistance.
• Work with clients to develop housing search, application, and interview skills.
•  Provide education/assistance with budgeting, debt management, credit counseling, and

address other barriers to securing housing (transportation, disability, lack of income, legal
issues, discrimination).

•  Establish/maintain relationships with municipal welfare administrators, other area agencies
and services providers and landlords.

Professional skills developed: screening; intake; orientation; assessment; action planning;
counseling; case management; identifying, triaging and managing crisis situations; client
education; referral; report and record keeping; consultation with other professionals.
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Southeastern New Hampshire Services, Anne-Marie Connelly Crisis Center, 111 County
Farm Road, Dover, NH. 1996-1998. Residential Assistant. Lindsay Freese, Executive Director;
Les Fenton, Director of Residential Services, Supervisor. State-funded, social-setting detox.
Overnight supervision of the Crisis Center and Turning Point Halfway House.
Professional skills developed: screening; intake; orientation; assessment; treatment planning;
counseling; case management; identifying, triaging and managing medical and non-medical crisis
situations; client education; report and record keeping; consultation with other professionals.

My Friend's Place, 368 Washington Street, Dover, NH. 1994-1996. Residential Manager.
Robert O'Connell, Executive Director; Lee Rollo, Program Director, Supervisor. Twelve-bed,
emergency homeless shelter. Direct client care, screening, intake and assessment of needs, case
management and referral to services; crisis management as indicated. In addition to overnight
supervision of the shelter, responsibilities included transcription of staff meeting notes and
audiotapes, record keeping, data entry and analysis, bookkeeping, in-house accounting,
preparation of monthly financial statements for the Board of Trustees, and production of the
Annual Report. Assisted with preparation of fiscal year budgets and grant proposals. Compiled
and maintained shelter's first computerized database of financial supporters, volunteers and major
contributors to the shelter; supervised mass mailings. Assisted with production of shelter's first
Standard Operating Procedures manual.

EDUCATION

Associate in Science (A.S.), with a Concentration in Behavioral Studies, University of New
Hampshire College of Professional Studies, awarded 2001. CPA: 3.5/4.0

RELATED ADDITIONAL TRAINING

EmpowOR by CSST, client-tracking and electronic document management system designed to
increase staff ability to collect, use and understand data. Training provided by Meaghan Arzberger,
Director of Economic Opportunity at York County Community Action Corporation, 2017-2021.

Rent Smart Certification, online training presented in a module-based curriculum that guides
renters to learn about their housing rights, laws, tenant and landlord responsibilities as well as
additional housing resources. Training adapted from University of Wisconsin-Madison and
provided by Maine Housing, 2017.

Results Oriented Management and Accountability (ROMA), a management approach to the
business of providing social services, with the goal oHncreasing an agency's capacity to serve as
a catalyst for self-determination in the community. Training provided by the National Association
for State Community Services Programs (NASCSP) and Meaghan Arzberger, Director of
Economic Opportunity, York County Community Action, 2016-2017.

Outcome Logic Model and Measurement Plan, a systematic and visual way to present the
perceived relationships among the resources you have to operate your program, the activities you
plan to do, and the changes or results you hope to achieve (and wish to measure). Utilized in
program planning, management and evaluation, consensus-building and fimdraising. Training
material provided by United Way, 2015-2016.
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Screening, Brief Intervention and Referral to Treatment (SHIRT) and Motivational
Interviewing training, sponsored by the Choose to be Healthy Coalition at York Hospital and
presented by Stephen Andrew, Health Education and Training Institute, 2018.
Mental Health First Aid USA Certification, sponsored by National Alliance on Mental
Illness/Maine, 2015-2018.

Poverty Institute, two-day, intensive workshop providing a grounding understanding of poverty.
Sponsored by York Community Services Association, United Way of York County, St. George's
Episcopal Church York Harbor and York County Community Action Corporation and presented
by Dr. Donna Beegle, President, Communication Across Barriers, 2015.

SOAR Specialist training, "Stepping Stones to Recovery", SSl/SSDI Outreach, Access and
Recovery (SOAR) model developed by Yvonne M. Ferret, and funded by the Substance Abuse
and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA), used to train case managers in assisting
adults who are homeless or at risk of homelessness to gain expedited access to SSI/SSDI by
completing and submitting comprehensive and high-quality applications to the Social Security
Administration. Two-day training sponsored by Maine DHHS, Office of Adult Mental Health
Services, and presented by Yvonne M. Ferret, Executive Director, Advocacy and Training Center,
Cumberland, MD, 2011.

Licensed Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselor (LADC)-approved training, sponsored by New
Hampshire Alcoholism and Drug Abuse Counselors Association, 1995-1999.

AFFILIATIONS

Board of Directors, Fuel & More, Kittery, ME, 2007-2015
Biddeford Homeless Initiative Task Force, Biddeford, ME, 2016-2021

COMPUTER AND OFFICE SKILLS

Hardware: IBM-compatible PC's
Software: Windows Operating Systems—^NT; 2000 Professional; XP; Vista; 7; 8/8.1; 10
Web browsers: Internet Explorer, Google Chrome and Microsoft Edge
Microsoft Office: MS Word, MS Excel, MS Outlook, MS PowerPoint, MS Publisher
G Suite (Google Workspace): Google Drive, Google Docs, Gmail, Duo
Adobe: Photoshop, Illustrator, Acrobat
Translation services: Pacific Interpreters (language); TTY and various other Deaf and Hard of
Hearing Service Providers, including legally-qualified sign language interpreters
Electronic file management: EmpowOR, web-based client services and results-tracking software
Virtual conferencing platforms: Zoom and RingCentral
Networking: Multi-factor authentication methods for secure remote access to Agency network
Office skills: Typing, transcription, multi-line phone, iPhone, printing, faxing, data input, filing

PERSONAL QUALITIES

• Dependable, observant, empathetic, persuasive, curious, loyal and honest
• Authentic, principled, altruistic, insightful, creative, idealistic and kind
•  Persistent, hardworking, accountable, resilient, introspective, optimistic and calm
•  Independent, determined, respectful, collaborative, direct, compassionate and fair
• Myers-Briggs Type Indicator: INFJ (The Advocate)
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SARAH JONES
i  t -

PROFESSIONAL SUMMARY

Trustworthy and compassionate human service professional. Dedicated, quick to learn and works well in

stressful situations. 2 years of experience wori<ing With homeless individuals/families, Ihdividuals Who have an

SLID and/or individuals who have been diagnosed with a serious mental illness to help those clients meet their

needs for survival, success and stability.

SKILLS

• Intakes and assessments

• Policies and procedures

• Team leadership

• Advocacy

• Valid NH HMIS License

• Training coordination

• Suicide prevention training

» Case Management

06/2019 - Current

WORK HISTORY

Homeless Outreach Coordinator

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County - Dover, NH

•  Triage and refer clients who are referred through NH 211 system to shelter

Utilize NH HMIS to document interactions with clients and coordinate care

•  Protect client's Private Health Information through adherence to HIPPA and Part 42 laws

•  Provide assertive street outreach to clients in their tents, care and other public places

•  Collaborate with other social service agencies such as, DCYF, BEAS & C4H to ensure positive health

and social outcomes for clients

•  Participate in community engagement strategies, such as speaking at churches, DARLA and other

events aimed at public awareness and social policy regarding homelessness

•  Utilize appropriate de-escalation strategies to communicate effectively with clients experiencing acute

mental health and/or substance use related crises

• Advocate for clients who are experiencing housing crises at city welfare and in the shelter intake

system

•  Conduct and coordinate Housing and Urban Development's annual Point-In-Time Survey of

homelessness across Stafford County

Volunteer Outreach Worker

Hand Up Health Services - Dover, NH

•; Worked with leadership to define volunteer mission and set standards.

• Participated in organizational and strategic planning for 2019

• Oversaw training and mentoring of up to 4 new team members each quarter

06/2018-11/2010
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•  Met with participants to conduct assessments of their current situations and establish practical harm

reduction strategies.

•  Educated individuals and communities to utilize naloxone as an overdose reversal agent

• Completed required documentation in a timely manner

•  Displayed sensitivity to the cultural and linguistic needs of participants and communities served

•  Served as the main point of contact for Monday, Tuesday and Wednesday night needle exchange

Production Worker

Savers - Portsmouth, NH 09/2013 - 04/2015

•  Located and brought donated merchandise to appropriate areas in storefront

•  Sorted donations according to standardized procedures

•  Checked all donated garments for functionality and quality

•  Determined quality and priced handbags.

• Organized and rotated stock from Men's clothing area in storefront dally

Canvasser

NextGen Climate - Dover 08/2014 -11/2014

•  Interacted with voters in the seacoast area to promote awareness of candidate's positions pertaining to

climate change

•  Fostered a positive work environment by consistently treating ail employees and voters with respect

and consideration

• Accurately logged all daily voter interactions

Care Provider

GSIL - Dover, NH 08/2011 -11/2012

•  Promoted the social, emotional and physical health of clients through diverse activities

•  Completed ail daily living tasks to enhance the quality of life of clients

• Adapted environments to meet changing physical needs of clients

•  Kept clients safe by removing hazards and correcting problems

•  Planned and cooked nutritious meals to meet specific dietary needs

EDUCATION

High School Diploma

Oyster River High School - Durham, NH 2009

Associate of Arts: Liberal Arts

Southern New Hampshire University - Hooksetl, NH 2017

Bachelor of Arts; Human Services

Southern New Hampshire University - Hooksett, NH Present

• Coursework in Addictions, Law & Ethics, Sociology and Psychology

• Concentration in Substance Abuse Counseling



Susan Danforth

[Contact Information Redacted]

Skills:

interpersonal skills

•  Operations assistance

•  Document control

•  Community outreach

•  Valid Driver's license

•  Staff support

•  Multitasking and organization

Work Experience:

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County

577 Central Ave

Dover NH 03820

Start Date February 12,2024

Title - Program Assistant

Extended Family LLC

Portsmouth NH

Licensed Nursing Assistant

Start Date: April 2018 End Date March 2021

Liberty Mutual Insurance Co

Dover NH 03820

Sr Contract Change Specialist

Start Date: March 7,1971 - End Date: August 1,2008

Education:

Franklin Pierce College

Portsmouth NH

Degree: Associate's in business

Accomplishments:

Founder of Connections Through Kindness

Start May 2021 -

Donated food provided to our unhoused residents via

Community donations and volunteers. Also provide food bags
at CAP on Wednesday for our unhoused residents

Award:

NH Non Profit Award - 2023

Award for a Senior person providing services within NH for the homeless
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Jayden Cruz

EDUCATION

University of New Hampshire - Durham, NH Expected May 2026
Bachelor ofScience: Social Work; Minor: Psychology GPA: 3.96
•  Dean's List: Fail 2022, Spring 2023, Fall 2023, Spring 2024, Fall 2024
•  Scholarships: TRIO Scholarship, Stephen Phillips Memorial Scholarship

EXPERIENCE
The Wheeler School - Seekook, MA June 2023 - August 2024
Summer Camp Group Leader June 2024-August2024

•  Supervised a team of 4 counselors in crucial decisions such as activity planning and conflict resolution
• Facilitated engaging activities for a group of 20 children ages 5-6 to aid in personal growth through skill development
• Maintained camp records, including daily attendance reports and medical information
• Adhered to an 8-hour schedule, ensuring timely and reliable participation in all camp activities

Summer Camp Group Counselor June 2023 - August 2023
• Counseled 3 individual campers with disabilities by adapting to needs and advocating for support
• Addressed behavioral outbursts with emotional regulation techniques and communicated concerns to camp leadership
• Collaborated with a team of 3 counselors to implement and create group activities
• Received the "Good Work Award" from 100% positive staff feedback

Landes Family Auto Sales - Attleboro, MA June 2022 - August 2022
Office Administration Intern

•  Provided exceptional customer service to hundreds of cliens in-person and over the phone
• Assessed thousands of identifiable information and chronologically organized records
• Utilized work-required software to evaluate and input business and customer data

ADDITIONAL EXPERIENCE
Family Responsibilities - Attleboro, MA March 2019 - Present
Caretaker and Homemaker

•  Provide monthly in-home visits to assist and elderly family member with disabilities
•  Support daily living activities, including personal care, mobility assistance, and meal preparation twice a day
• Deliver emotional support and socialization through daily interactions and board game entertainment
•  Independently raised over $3,500 through a GoFundMe campaign to aid with household expenses and repairs

CAMPUS & LEADERSHIP ACTIVITIES
UNH Habitat for Humanity - Durham, NH September 2023 - Present
Membership Chair and Fundraising Committee Member

• Collaborate with on-site general contractors to construct housing for low-income families
•  Practice written and verbal communication, physical labor, and teamwork over a 6-hour period on build sites
• Recruit over 50 new members every year to participate m club events and build sites
• Fundraised over $200 by selling wooden birdhouses to UNH students

UNH Gaming and Esports Club - Durham, NH August 2022 - Present
Director

• Create a diverse organization by orchestrating weekly events for members and public
• Oversee an online Discord community with 680+ active members for competitive teams and general club members
• Disclose frequent check-ins with 6 club council members to provide one-on-one support
• Supervise Esports+: exclusive events for women and LGBTQIA+ members to promote belonging and safety
• Arrange once-a-week meetings with club council and MUB Smdent Activities Office to address club concerns
• Awarded Rookie of the Year Award (2022-2023) and nominated for Leader in Action (2022-2023)

CERTIFICATIONS & SKILLS
Certifications

•  American Red Cross: Adult and Pediatric CPR and First Aid Expires: May 2025
•  QPR Institute: Suicide Prevention Gatekeeper Program Issued: February 2024

Skills

•  Canva, Microsoft Word, Discord, SPSS, Spanish, Computer Hardware, Marketing, Leadership, Teamwork


